


 

 

 
 
 

    
    

 
  

    
 

  
 

 

  
 
 

  
 
 

     
  

 
   
   

 
 

  
 
 

                                          
   

   
  

 
 

  
 

    
 

       
  

 
  

 
  

 
 

       
   

 
    

 
    

  

         

        

            

       

       

       

        

      

       

         

      

ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE 
DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Meeting, Wednesday, December 3, 2025, 
2:00 p.m., Palatka Campus, Board Room 

MISSION STATEMENT 

St. Johns River State College, an open-access, public institution 

of higher education in Northeast Florida, promotes excellence 

in teaching and learning to enrich the lives of its students and 

strengthen its community. The College offers certificates, 

associate and baccalaureate degrees, and provides high-quality 

education, training, and cultural opportunities to encourage 

scholarly achievement. St. Johns River State College delivers 

high-quality instruction through face-to-face and distance 

education modalities and creates a supportive learning 

environment that includes services and resources to enable all 

students to reach their educational goals. 

*Note: At the discretion of the Chair or any other Board member, items may be taken out of 
order for action and/or discussion. 

I. Call to Order 

II. Public Comment 

III. Viking Spotlight: SJR State Indoor Volleyball Team - - Florida College System Activities 
Association (FCSAA) DII Volleyball Champion/NJCAA DII Volleyball Championship 
Tournament Participant 
Presented by Athletic Director Ross Jones, Head Indoor Volleyball Coach Stephanie 
Champine and Asst. Indoor Volleyball Coach Shaun Dryden 

IV. Old Business 

V. Consent Agenda – Chairperson Rich Komando Action 
The items on the consent agenda are routine business and are not expected 
to require discussion before action.  Items will be enacted by one motion. 
Any Trustee can request a topic to be removed from the consent agenda 
and discussed further for separate action. 

a. Minutes 

1. Approval of Minutes of October 15, 2025, Board Meeting 

b. Chief Operating Officer/Senior Vice President – Dr. Melanie Brown (If you have any 
questions, please call Dr. Brown’s direct #386-312-4202.) 

1. Approval of Personnel Matters 

2. Approval of SJR State’s Annual Information Security Report 
(this document is exempt from Public Record) 

c. Vice President for Finance/CFO – VP Randy Peterson (If you have any questions, 
please call VP Peterson’s direct #386-312-4022.) 

1. Facilities Usage Report – October and November 2025 

2. Approval of Monthly Financial Report – October 2025 
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3. Approval of Write-offs of Tangible Personal Property 

d. Vice President for Academic & Student Affairs – Dr. Ed Jordan (If you have any 
questions, please call Dr. Jordan’s direct #386-312-4151.) 

Academic Affairs: 
1. Approval of the following curriculum revisions effective Fall 2026 for the Adult 

Education Department 
A. Courses to Delete: 

i. ABX 0100 ABX Mathematics – 5 Day 

2. Approval of the following curriculum revisions effective Fall 2026 for the 
Department of Arts and Sciences 
A. Courses to Delete: 

i. PHI 2630 Contemporary Ethics 
ii. PHI 2630 Honors Contemporary Ethics 

B. Revised Programs 
i. Honors Program 

3. Approval of the following curriculum revisions effective Fall 2026 for the Florida 
School of the Arts 
A. Courses to Delete: 

i. ARH 1006 Visual Ideas 
ii. ART 1540C Watercolor I 
iii. ART 2164C Mixed Media 
iv. DAA 1100 Basic Contemporary Dance 
v. DAA 1101 Intermediate Contemporary Dance 
vi. PGY 2107C Large Format Photography 
vii. TPP 1710 Stage Voice I 

4. Approval of the following curriculum revisions effective Fall 2026 for the 
Department of Teacher Education 
A. Revised Courses: 

i. EEX 4221 Assessment of Exceptional Education Students 
ii. LAE 4314 Teaching Language Arts 
iii. RED 4511 Intermediate Literacy: Reading & Thinking 
iv. RED 4940 Final Reading Practicum 

B. Courses to Delete: 
i. PEL 2214 Softball III 
ii. PEL 2219 Baseball III 
iii. PEL 2324 Volleyball III 

5. Approval of the 2025-2026 Articulation Agreement Between the District Board of 
Trustees of St. Johns River State College and the following private school: 
A. Lighthouse Christian School 

6. Approval of the 2026-2027 Early College Articulation Agreement Between the 
District Board of Trustees of St. Johns River State College and the following 
districts: 
A. Clay County School District 
B. Putnam County School District 
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Workforce 
1. Approval of the following curriculum revisions effective Fall 2026 for the 

Department of Nursing 
A. Revised Courses: 

i. NUR 1521C Mental Health Nursing 

2. Approval of new 2025-2026 Continuing Workforce Education Course (Advanced 
and Specialized) 
A. CWL #### - SHIELD – Frontline Leadership Training 

VI. New Business 

A. Chief Operating Officer/Senior Vice President – Dr. Melanie 
Brown – Action and Information Agenda Items (If you have any 
questions, please call Dr. Brown’s direct #386-312-4202.) 

1. Chief Operating Officer – Dr. Melanie Brown 

a. Public Hearing for Amendment to SJR Board Rule 2.11 Public Hearing 
Pre-Qualification of Contractors 

b. Action to Approve Amendment to SJR Board Rule 2.11 Action 
Pre-Qualification of Contractors 

c. Public Hearing for Repeal of SJR Board Rule 4.31 Minority Public Hearing 
Business Contract Policy 

d. Action to Approve Repeal of SJR Board Rule 4.31 Minority Action 
Business Contract Policy 

e. Public Hearing for Amendment to SJR Board Rule 7.23 Public Hearing 
Transferring Credits to St. Johns River State College 

f. Action to Approve Amendment to SJR Board Rule 7.23 Action 
Transferring Credits to St. Johns River State College 

g. Receipt of Approval from the Florida Department of Information 
Education to Serve as a Charter School Sponsor 

h. The Aspen Institute Names St. Johns River State College Information 
as a Top 200 US Community College Eligible for the 2027 
Aspen Prize 

2. Foundation – AVP – Michelle Sjogren 

a. Action to Approve the 2024-25 St. Johns River State Action 
College Foundation Audit 

b. Action to Approve the 2024-25 Internal Revenue Service Action 
Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax Form 990 
(Taxable Year Ended March 31, 2025) 
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c. Action to Approve the Renewal of the Designation and 
Certification of the St. Johns River State College 
Foundation, Inc., as a Direct Support Organization for the 
College (DSO Audit Review Checklist) 

d. Internal Revenue Service Application for Recognition of 
Exemption Form 1023 

e. Action to Approve the Memorandum of Understanding 
between St. Johns River State College and the St. Johns 
River State College Foundation 

f. Annual Report and Foundation Update 

3. Facilities – AVP of Facilities, Planning, and Capital Projects -
Terry Thomas 

a. Change Order #002, Scorpio Corporation, Sewer Piping 
Repair and Replacement Project, Palatka Campus 

b. Action to Approve the Annual Comprehensive Safety 
Inspection Reports 

c. Action to Approve Plans & Specifications for the Exterior 
Painting, Gymnasium, Palatka Campus 

d. Action to Approve Plans & Specifications for the 
Renovation and New Construction of Offices, Gymnasium, 
Palatka Campus 

e. Action to Approve Final Pay Application for Work 
Completed, Scorpio Corporation, Chiller and Cooling 
Tower Replacement Project, Orange Park Campus 

f. Action to Approve Final Pay Application for Work 
Completed, Scorpio Corporation, Sewer Piping Repair and 
Replacement Project, Palatka Campus 

B. Vice President for Finance/CFO – VP Randy Peterson – Action 
Agenda Items (If you have any questions, please call VP 
Peterson’s direct #386-312-4022.) 

1. Action to Approve College’s Continuity of Operations Plan 
(COOP)  (this document is exempt from Public Record) 

2. Action to Approve College’s Facility Usage Fee Schedule 

Action 

Information 

Action 

Information 

Information 

Action 

Action 

Action 

Action 

Action 

Action 

Action 
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C. Vice President for Academic & Student Affairs – Dr. Ed Jordan – 
Action and Information Agenda Items (If you have any questions, 
please call Dr. Jordan’s direct #386-312-4151.) 

1. Associate Vice President for Academic Affairs - Mike Keller 
a. Approval of Summer 2026 Study Abroad Proposal (May Action 

15-26) – The Republic of Ireland (LIT 2182, ENC 1102 and 
WOH 1022) 

2. Assistant Vice President of Workforce and Career Services -
Dr. Jay Paterson 
a. Workforce Education - Associate in Science Degree Information 

Proposals 
i. A.S. Crime Scene Technology/Forensic Science (Fall 

2026) 
ii. A.S. Cardiovascular Technology  (Fall 2027) 
iii. A.S. Agribusiness Management (Fall 2026) 

VII. President’s Report 

VIII. Trustees’ Comments 

IX. Adjournment 
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ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE 
DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

October 15, 2025 

MEMBERS PRESENT: 
Mr. Rich Komando, Chairperson 
Mr. Wendell Davis, Vice-Chair 
Mr. Nick Primrose 
Mr. Jud Sapp 
Ms. Chereese Stewart 
Mr. Cyrus Zomorodian 

OTHERS PRESENT: 
Joe H. Pickens, J.D., Executive Secretary 
Jeremiah Blocker, J.D., Board Attorney 

Chairperson Komando called the meeting to order at 
2:00 pm. 

The floor was open to Public Comments. Hearing 
none, the floor was closed to Public Comments. 

There was no Old Business. 

Chairperson Komando requested approval of the 
Consent Agenda Items IV.a-d: 

A.1 - Minutes of September 17, 2025, Board Meeting 

B.1 - Chief Operating Officer/Senior Vice President – 
Dr. Melanie Brown: Personnel Matters 

C.1-2- Vice President for Finance/CFO – Randy 
Peterson: Facilities Usage Report – September 2025; 
Monthly Financial Report – September 2025; and 
Budget Amendments (Operating Fund 1, Restricted 
Fund 2, Auxiliary Fund 3, and Capital Outlay/Plant 
Fund 7). 

D.1-2 - Vice President for Academic & Student Affairs – 
Dr. Ed Jordan: 2025-2026 Allied Health Program 
Handbook Update. 

Mr. Primrose moved approval of Consent Agenda 
Items IV.a-d. Mr. Davis seconded the motion.  Motion 
carried (Davis, Komando, Primrose, Sapp, Stewart, 
Zomorodian – Yes). 

Dr. Melanie Brown reviewed for information only 
Amendment to SJR Board Rule 2.11 Pre-Qualification 

Meeting Call to Order 

Public Comment 

Old Business 

Consent Agenda 
Items 

Approved Consent 
Agenda Items IV.a-d 

Chief Operating 
Officer Item V.A.1.a-c 
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of Contractors, Repeal SJR Board Rule 4.31 Minority 
Business Contract Policy, and Amendment to SJR 
Board Rule 7.23 Transferring Credits to St. Johns River 
State College. 

Dr. Brown reviewed and requested approval to Change 
the Date of the Board of Trustees Meeting from 
November 19 to December 3, 2025. Trustees Stewart 
and Primrose noted they had conflicts; however, they 
may be able to attend via Zoom. 

Mr. Davis moved, seconded by Ms. Stewart, to approve 
Chief Operating Officer Item V.A.1.d (a detailed listing 
is contained in the material submitted by the Office of 
Chief Operating Officer). Motion carried (Davis, 
Komando, Primrose, Sapp, Stewart, Zomorodian – 
Yes). 

AVP Terry Thomas introduced Ray Sjogren, the new 
Director of Facilities Business Operations. 

AVP Thomas reviewed for information only Change 
Order #001, Scorpio Corporation, Palatka Campus Site 
Improvements Project. 

AVP Thomas reviewed and requested approval for the 
Final Pay Application for Work Completed, Scorpio 
Corporation, Palatka Campus Site Improvements 
Project. 

Ms. Stewart, moved, seconded by Mr. Davis, to 
approve Chief Operating Officer Item V.A.2.b (a 
detailed listing is contained in the material submitted by 
the Office of Chief Operating Officer). Motion carried 
(Davis, Komando, Primrose, Sapp, Stewart, 
Zomorodian – Yes). 

AVP Thomas reviewed and requested approval of the 
Continuing Services Agreement for Janitorial Services 
with ABM Industry Groups, LLC. Discussion followed. 

Mr. Primrose, moved, seconded by Mr. Davis, to 
approve Chief Operating Officer Item V.A.2.c (a 
detailed listing is contained in the material submitted by 
the Office of Chief Operating Officer). Motion carried 
(Davis, Komando, Primrose, Sapp, Stewart, 
Zomorodian – Yes). 

AVP Chuck Romer reviewed for information only an 
update on SJR State Open Enrollment. 

Approved Chief 
Operating Officer Item 
V.A.1.d 

Chief Operating 
Officer Item V.A.2.a 

Approved Chief 
Operating Officer Item 
V.A.2.b 

Approved Chief 
Operating Officer Item 
V.A.2.c 

Chief Operating 
Officer Item V.A.3.a 
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VP/CFO Randy Peterson reviewed and requested 
approval of the Contract Between BMS CAT, LLC and 
St. Johns River State College for Disaster Recovery 
Services. 

Mr. Primrose moved, seconded by Ms. Stewart, to 
approve VP/Chief Finance Officer Item V.B.1. as 
submitted (a detailed listing is contained in the material 
submitted by the Office of VP/Chief Finance Officer). 
Motion carried (Davis, Komando, Primrose, Sapp, 
Stewart, Zomorodian – Yes). 

Mr. Peterson reviewed and requested approval of the 
Contract Between Looks Great Services of MS, Inc. 
and St. Johns River State College for Disaster Debris 
Removal and Malmanagement Services. 

Mr. Davis moved, seconded by Mr. Primrose, to 
approve VP/Chief Finance Officer Item V.B.2. as 
submitted (a detailed listing is contained in the material 
submitted by the Office of VP/Chief Finance Officer). 
Motion carried (Davis, Komando, Primrose, Sapp, 
Stewart, Zomorodian – Yes). 

Dr. Jordan introduced QEP Co-Director Misel Soto, 
who gave an update on “The Viking Experience:  Core 
to Career.” He noted that Co-Director Dr. Misty Sutton 
had an Anatomy Lab to teach and was therefore not 
available to attend the Board meeting. Discussion 
followed. 

President Pickens informed the Board of a bill that has 
been filed in the House that would require every public 
institution of higher learning in Florida to name a 
roadway in the college after Charlie Kirk. Trustee 
Stewart noted that the Clay County Board of County 
Commissioners in their meeting yesterday discussed 
naming a road after Mr. Kirk.  Discussion followed. 

Trustee Davis, Chair of the Student Housing DSO 
Board, noted that the first audit passed amazingly well. 

Trustee comments were made. 

Chairperson Komando adjourned the meeting at 3:00 
p.m. 

Approved VP/Chief 
Finance Officer Item 
V.B.1 

Approved VP/Chief 
Finance Officer Item 
V.B.2 

Vice President for 
Academic & Student 
Affairs Item V.C.1 

President’s Report 

Trustee Comments 

Adjournment 
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__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

PALATKA CAMPUS 5001 ST. JOHNS AVENUE 
PALATKA, FL 32177-3807  |  (386) 312-4200 

ST. AUGUSTINE CAMPUS 2990 COLLEGE DRIVE 
ST. AUGUSTINE, FL 32084-1197  |  (904) 808-7400 

ORANGE PARK CAMPUS 283 COLLEGE DRIVE 
ORANGE PARK, FL 32065-7639 |  (904) 276-6800 

SJRstate.edu 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY/EQUAL ACCESS COLLEGE 

TO: Joe Pickens, J.D. 
College President 

FROM: Melanie Brown, Ph.D. 
Chief Operating Officer/Senior Vice President 

DATE: November 24, 2025 

RE: CONSENT Agenda Item 
December 3, 2025, District Board of Trustees Meeting 

The following item is submitted for the Board of Trustees’ consideration at the December 3, 2025, meeting: 

1. Approval of Personnel Matters 

2. Approval of SJR State’s Annual Information Security Report 

Note: This item is exempt from Public Record. Documentation to be distributed to members of SJR State’s District 
Board of Trustees only. 

https://SJRstate.edu


DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
PERSONNEL MATTERS 

BOARD MEETING:  December 3, 2025 

NAME JOB CLASSIFICATION TYPE OF PAY OR ACTION PAY SCALE OR RATE DATES 
Mary Johnson FT- Faculty Hire 12 Month - Bachelors 11/3/2025 
Catrena King FT- Faculty Resignation N/A 12/31/2025 
Karen Moore FT- Faculty Retirement N/A 12/31/2025 

NAME JOB CLASSIFICATION TYPE OF PAY OR ACTION PAY SCALE OR RATE DATES 
Autumn Dickerson FT - Professional Support Hire PS - Grade 120 12/1/2025 
Allyson Ray FT - Professional Support Hire PS - Grade 120 11/3/2025 
Thomas Reynolds FT - Professional Support Reorganization PS - Grade 124 10/1/2025 
Ryan Ward FT - Professional Support Promotion PS - Grade 120 10/1/2025 

NAME JOB CLASSIFICATION TYPE OF PAY OR ACTION PAY SCALE OR RATE DATES 
Scott Christopher FT - Para-professional Hire PP - Grade 115 12/1/2025 
Brian Cigic FT - Para-professional Reorganization PP - Grade 114 10/1/2025 
Karen Gresham FT - Para-professional Retirement N/A 12/31/2025 
Sorya Ou FT - Para-professional Retirement N/A 12/31/2025 
Justin Parshall FT - Para-professional Reorganization PP - Grade 114 10/1/2025 
Valerie Rodriguez-Olmo FT - Para-professional Resignation N/A 12/19/2025 

NAME JOB CLASSIFICATION TYPE OF PAY OR ACTION PAY SCALE OR RATE DATES 
Harleigh Burke PT - Para-professional Hire $17.65/hr 10/21/2025 
Jenna Kirkland PT - Para-professional Hire $17.65/hr 10/21/2025 

NAME JOB CLASSIFICATION TYPE OF PAY OR ACTION PAY SCALE OR RATE DATES 
Chester Barkley FT - Career Service Reorganization CS - Grade 106 10/1/2025 
Brendan Booth FT - Career Service Reorganization CS - Grade 106 10/1/2025 
Celeste Ponce FT - Career Service Hire CS - Grade 108 12/1/2025 
Holton Warren FT - Career Service Reorganization CS - Grade 109 10/1/2025 
Grace Williams FT - Career Service Reclassification CS - Grade 110 11/1/2025 

NAME JOB CLASSIFICATION TYPE OF PAY OR ACTION PAY SCALE OR RATE DATES 
Breanna Cochran PT - Career Service Hire $17.65/hr 10/20/2025 
Garvin Crosby PT - Career Service Hire $16.45/hr 10/20/2025 
Alexander Lee PT - Career Service Hire $18.15/hr 11/13/2025 
Rachel Mouer PT - Career Service Hire $18.93/hr 10/24/2025 

MISCELLANEOUS 
1. Request approval for the below to volunteer at Thrasher beginning 11/01/2025: 

Angel Chapman 























































































































 

 
 
 
 
 
 

    
   

     
   

 
   

 
       

  
 

 
 

 
    

 

 

    
 

     
     
      
        
  
    
     

 
   

  
 

 
   

 
   
     

   
    

   
    
        

 
    

 
 

 

    
  

 

     
 

 

   
   

 
  

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

PALATKA CAMPUS 5001 ST. JOHNS AVENUE 
PALATKA, FL 32177-3807  |  (386) 312-4200 

ST. AUGUSTINE CAMPUS 2990 COLLEGE DRIVE 
ST. AUGUSTINE, FL 32084-1197  |  (904) 808-7400 

ORANGE PARK CAMPUS 283 COLLEGE DRIVE 
ORANGE PARK, FL 32065-7639 |  (904) 276-6800 

SJRstate.edu 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY/EQUAL ACCESS COLLEGE 

TO: Joe Pickens, J.D. 
College President 

FROM: Melanie Brown, Ph.D. 
Chief Operating Officer/Senior Vice President 

DATE: November 24, 2025 

RE: ACTION and INFORMATIONAL Agenda Items 
December 3, 2025, District Board of Trustees Meeting 

The following items are submitted for the Board of Trustees’ consideration at the December 3, 2025, meeting: 

1. Chief Operating Officer, Dr. Melanie Brown 

a. Public Hearing for Amendment to SJR Board Rule 2.11 Pre-Qualification of Contractors 
b. Action to Approve Amendment to SJR Board Rule 2.11 Pre-Qualification of Contractors 
c. Public Hearing for Repeal of SJR Board Rule 4.31 Minority Business Contract Policy 
d. Action to Approve Repeal of SJR Board Rule 4.31 Minority Business Contract Policy 
e. Public Hearing for Amendment to SJR 7.23 Transferring Credits to St. Johns River State College 
f. Action to Approve Amendment to SJR 7.23 Transferring Credits to St. Johns River State College 
g. Information Only: Receipt of approval from the Florida Department of Education to serve as a charter 

school sponsor 
h. Information Only: The Aspen Institute Names St. Johns River State College as a Top 200 US Community 

College Eligible for the 2027 Aspen Prize 

2. Foundation, AVP Michelle Sjogren 

a. Action to Approve the 2024-25 St. Johns River State College Foundation Audit 
b. Action to Approve the 2024-25 Internal Revenue Service Return of Organization Exempt from Income 

Tax Form 990 (Taxable Year Ended March 31, 2025) 
c. Action to Approve the Renewal of the Designation and Certification of the St. Johns River State College 

Foundation, Inc., as a Direct Support Organization for the College (DSO Audit Review Checklist) 
d. Information Only: Internal Revenue Service Application for Recognition of Exemption Form 1023 
e. Action to Approve the Memorandum of Understanding between St. Johns River State College and the St. 

Johns River State College Foundation 
f. Annual Report and Foundation Update (Information Only) 

https://SJRstate.edu


   
 

    
  

    
      
     

 
     

 
    

  
 
 

 
 

3. Facilities, AVP Terry Thomas 

a. Information Only: Change Order #002, Scorpio Corporation, Sewer Piping Repair and Replacement 
Project, Palatka Campus 

b. Action to Approve the Annual Comprehensive Safety Inspection Reports 
c. Action to Approve Plans & Specifications for the Exterior Painting, Gymnasium, Palatka Campus 
d. Action to Approve Plans & Specifications for the Renovation and New Construction of Offices, 

Gymnasium, Palatka Campus 
e. Action to Approve Final Pay Application for Work Completed, Scorpio Corporation, Chiller and Cooling 

Tower Replacement Project, Orange Park Campus 
f. Action to Approve Final Pay Application for Work Completed, Scorpio Corporation, Sewer Piping Repair 

and Replacement Project, Palatka Campus 



                     
           
  

                
 

 

    
 

 
  

  
 

  

 

 
   

  
 

 

 

 
  
 

SJR 2.11 Pre-Qualification of Contractors REDLINED 
(Replaces SJR 4.32 , Technical and Grammatical Changes, Specific Authorities Updated 6/01/05) 
Approved 1/18/06 
Specific Authorities: FAC 6A-2, FAC 6A-14, FS 1013.46, SREF, Volume 1, January 2000, FS 553.73 through FS 553.898, FAC 6A-
14.0734 

The College will pre-qualify bidders for construction contracts according to rules 
established by the State Board of Education in FAC 6A-2 and SREF which require the pre-
qualification of bidders for educational facilities. The District Board of Trustees shall 
require that all construction or capital improvement bids be accompanied by evidence that 
the bidder holds an appropriate certificate or license or that the prime contractor has a 
current valid license [FS 1013.46 (1) (c)]. 

As required by current SREF requirements, the Board of Trustees adopts the following 
procedures for the pre-qualification of contractors: 

1) St. Johns River State College shall pre-qualify construction contractors for a one-year 
period or for a specific project. 

2) Contractors shall be pre-qualified by St. Johns River State College on the basis of the 
following criteria and other criteria as determined to be appropriate by St. Johns River 
State College: 
a) Proof that�the contractor holds a contractor’s license which authorizes the�

contractor to supervise the work within the scope of the construction project. 
b) Evidence that the applicant has financial resources to start-up and follow through 

on projects and to respond to damages in case of default as shown by written 
verification of bonding capacity equal to or exceeding the amount of any project for 
which the contractor seeks pre-qualification.  The written verification must be 
submitted by a licensed surety company rated excellent (or better) in current A.M. 
Best Guide and qualified to do business within Florida.  St. Johns River State College 
may require the applicant to submit any audited or un-audited financial information 
necessary to evaluate an applicant’s financial ability to perform�the project and to�
respond to damages in the event of default. 

c) Evidence of satisfactory experience with construction techniques, trade standards, 
quality workmanship, project scheduling, cost control, management of projects, 
and building codes for similar or less cost or scope projects as shown by the 
successful completion within the past five (5) years of at least two (2) other projects 
of similar size. 

d) Evidence of satisfactory resolution of claims filed by or against the contractor 
asserted on projects of the same or similar size within the five (5) years preceding 
the submission of the application.  Any claim against a contractor shall be deemed 
to have been satisfactorily resolved if final judgment is rendered in favor of the 
contractor or any final judgment rendered against the contractor is satisfied within 
ninety (90) days of the date the judgment becomes final. 

3) The St. Johns River State College procedure for pre-qualification of contractors shall: 



 

 

 

 
 

 

  

   
 

  

 

  

a) Not restrict competition, or prevent the submission of a bid, or prohibit the 
consideration of a bid submitted by pre-qualified contractor. 

b) Allow pre-qualification of any responsible contractor who meets the uniform criteria 
established in the State Requirements for Educational Facilities (SREF). 

c) Govern the submission of financial information by contractors. 
d) Provide for a Contractor Pre-Qualification Review Committee to review and 

evaluate applications and make recommendations for type of project, dollar 
volume, and limits allowed within the scope of the pre-qualification. 

e) Not supersede any small business, woman-owned or minority-owned business-
enterprise assistance program adopted by St. Johns River State College. 

f)e)Provide for the rejection of applications which contain inaccurate information, 
declare a contractor delinquent, and suspend or revoke a pre-qualification 
certificate. 

g)f)Provide for either the approval or rejection of each application for pre-qualification 
within sixty (60) days after receipt by the Board’s administrator.�

4) Each contractor, firm or person requesting pre-qualification shall be required to submit 
separate applications that include, at a minimum, the following: 
a) Detailed information on St. Johns River State College -prescribed forms setting forth 

the applicant’s competence, past performance, experience, financial resources,�
and capability, including a Public Entity Crime statement, and references. 

b) Audited or un-audited financial information current within the past twelve (12) 
months, such as a balance sheet and statement of operation, and bonding 
capacity. 

c) General information about the contractor company, its principals, and its history 
including state and date of incorporation. 

d) Contractor trade categories and information regarding the state and local licenses 
and license numbers held by the applicant. 

e) A list of projects completed within the past five (5) years, including dates, client, 
contact name, contact phone number, approximate dollar value, and size. 

f) Certificates of insurance confirming current worker’s compensation, public liability�
and property damage insurance as required by law. 

g) A list of all pending litigation and all litigation within the past five (5) years, including 
an explanation of each. Litigation initiated by the contractor to protect the 
contractor’s legal rights shall not�be used as a basis for rejecting pre-qualification. 

h) The completed application and financial information shall be attested to and signed 
by an authorized officer of the company, the owner, or sole proprietor, as 
appropriate and the signature shall be notarized. 

5) The St. Johns River State College may issue a certificate valid for one year or a specific 
project.  The certificate shall include: 
a) A statement indicating that the contractor may bid for projects during the time 

period specified, or may bid on the specific project, as appropriate. 
b) A statement establishing the total dollar value of work the contractor will be 

permitted to have under contract at any one time as determined by the contractor’s�
bonding capacity or ten (10) times the net quick assets. 



 
  

 

 
 

 

  

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

c) A statement establishing the maximum dollar value of each individual project the 
contractor will be permitted to have under contract with the Board at any one time. 
The maximum value of each project may be up to twice the value of the largest 
project previously completed but shall not exceed the contractor’s bonding�
capacity or ten (10) times the net quick assets. 

d) A statement establishing the type of work the contractor will be permitted to 
provide. 

e) The expiration date of the certificate. 
6) Certificates not for a specific project shall be subject to an annual renewal process. 

a) Financial statements or written verification of bonding capacity on file with the 
Board shall be updated annually.  Failure to submit a new statement or verification 
of bonding capacity, after at least thirty (30) days written notice by the Board, shall 
automatically revoke a pre-qualification certificate. 

b) The St. Johns River State College may allow pre-qualified contractors to request a 
revision of their pre-qualification status at any time they believe the dollar volume of 
work under contract or the size and complexity of projects should be increased if 
experience, staff size, staff qualifications, and other pertinent data justify the 
action. 

7) The decision to declare a contractor delinquent may only be made by the President and must 

be ratified by the Board at its next regular meeting following such decision by the President. 

Should a contractor be determined to be delinquent, after notice and an opportunity for a fair 

hearing, St. Johns River State College shall notify the contractor and its surety, in writing, 

that the contractor is disqualified from bidding work with St. Johns River State College as 

long as the delinquency status exists.  A delinquent condition may be determined to be in 

effect when one (1) or more of the following conditions occur without justifiable cause: 

a) A substantial or repeated failure to comply with contract documents after written 
notice of such non-compliance. 

b) A substantial or repeated failure to provide supervision and coordination of 
subcontractor’s work after written notice of such failure.�

c) Substantial deviation from project time schedules after written notice of non-
compliance. 

d) Substantial or repeated failure to pay subcontractors after St. Johns River State 
College has paid the contractor for the work performed by the subcontractors and 
in accordance with approved requisitions for payment. 

e) Substantial or repeated failure to provide the quality of workmanship compatible 
with the trades standards for the community after written notice of such failure. 

f) Substantial or repeated failure to comply with the warranty requirements of 
previous contracts after written notice of such failure. 

g) Failure to maintain the required insurance coverage after written notice of such 
failure. 

8) The St. Johns River State College may, for good cause, suspend a contractor for a specified 

period of time or revoke the pre-qualification certificate.  Causes for suspension or 

revocation shall include, but not be limited to, one or more of the following: 

a) Inaccurate or misleading statements included in the application. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

b) Declared in default by St. Johns River State College., including causes due to 
contractor’s noncompliance with St. Johns River State College small business,�
woman-owned or minority-owned business-enterprise assistance program. 

c) Adjudged to be bankrupt. 
d) Performance, in connection with contract work, becomes unsatisfactory to St. 

Johns River State College based on St. Johns River State College asserting and 
recovering liquidated damages in action against the contractor. 

e) Payment record, in connection with the contract work, becomes unsatisfactory. 
f) Becomes delinquent on a construction project. 
g) Contractor’s license becomes suspended or is revoked.�
h) No longer meets St. Johns River State College pre-qualification criteria. 

9) A contractor whose application has been rejected or whose certificate has been suspended or 

revoked by St. Johns River State College shall be given the benefit of reconsideration and 

appeal as follows: 

a) The aggrieved contractor may, within ten (10) days after receiving notification of such 

action, request reconsideration in writing.  The contractor may submit additional 

information at the time of the appeal. 

b) The St. Johns River State College shall act upon a contractor’s request within thirty (30) 
calendar days after the filing and shall notify the contractor of its action to adhere to, 

modify, or reverse its original action.  St. Johns River State College may require 

additional information to justify the reconsideration. 



                                                          
      

  
      

 
 

  
 

     
 

    
 

 
    

 
 

 

  
   

  
   

  
 

 
 

   
    

  

 
 

SJR 4.31 Minority Business Contract Policy REPEAL 
(Technical and Grammatical Changes, Specific Authorities Updated 6/01/05) 
Approval unknown 
Specific Authorities: FS 287.093, FS 287.0931, FS 287.0943, Chapter 288, FS 

The Board of Trustees of St. Johns River State College is committed to promoting, ensuring, 
and improving the equality of opportunity in the College’s procurement processes for�
commodities, services, and construction. Accordingly, purchasing procedures for 
commodities and services provide the opportunity for solicitation of minority participation. 

For commodities and services: the Vice President for Finance and Administration/CFO will 
provide leadership and promote the cooperation of all College staff involved in purchasing 
to secure participation by minority vendors in College purchasing processes. The Business 
Office will maintain a file of specialized certified minority business enterprise listings 
which will be made available to College personnel involved in purchasing commodities 
and services. The Business Office will obtain the directory of minority business enterprises 
maintained and certified by the Department of Management Services under FS 287.0943 
and provide the listing to all departments within the College that purchase goods or 
commodities. 

Participation in Construction Contracts: The Director of Facilities, whenever possible, will 
schedule a meeting in advance of pre-bid meetings on construction contracts. The 
advance meeting will be held for the purpose of informing minority business enterprises of 
contracting and subcontracting opportunities in planned campus construction activities. 
Two or more projects may be reviewed at one advance meeting; the Director of Facilities 
will maintain a file of Certified Minority Business Enterprise Construction firms which will 
serve as the core list of invitees to advance meetings of minority business enterprises 
regarding planned construction projects. 

For purposes of this rule, the College will use the definitions provided in Chapter 287, FS 
and Chapter 288, FS to identify Minority Businesses and Small Minority Businesses. 

At the direction of the Board, the College may, from time to time, set aside up to ten 
percent of the budgeted dollars for procurements from certified minority businesses if the 
Board deems such a set aside as appropriate to ensure equality of opportunity (FS 
287.093). 



  
 

  

 

 
  

 
  

 

  

  

 

  

   

 

 

SJR 7.23 (R34)�Transferring Credits to St Johns River State College REDLINED 
(New Rule Promulgated 6/01/05) 
Approved 1/18/06; Revised 9/15/10; 4/20/11, 1/16/13, 11/19/25�
Specific Authorities: FS 1007.27, FS 1007.24(7), FS 1001.64(8)(a) and (c) 

The District Board of Trustees directs the President and appropriate College personnel to 
establish policies and procedures for the accepting, awarding and transferring of credit. 
St. Johns River State College will accept transfer college credits under the following 
circumstances: 

Coursework from Regionally-Accredited United States Department of Education (USDOE)�
Accredited Institutions�
St. Johns River State College will evaluate coursework from degree-granting institutions 
that are fully accredited at the collegiate level by their appropriate regional a USDOE�
recognized�accrediting agency. 

• Credit shall be awarded if the courses are judged to be academically equivalent to�
courses offered at the college, including equivalency of faculty credentials,�
regardless of the public or nonpublic control of the institution.�

• The award of credit may be limited to courses that are entered in the Statewide 
Course Numbering System. 

• Credits awarded shall satisfy institutional requirements on the same basis as 
credits awarded to native students. 

Coursework from Non-Regionally-Accredited Institutions�
Coursework from non-regionally-accredited institutions will only be evaluated under the 
following provisions:�

1)�The institution participates in Florida’s Statewide Course Numbering System.�
2)�The course must have been completed after�the credential effective date.�

Coursework from International Institutions�
International students must have their transcripts translated and evaluated by one of the 
credential evaluation agencies sanctioned by the National Association of Credential 
Evaluation Services, Inc. (NACES). Each course will be individually assessed for transfer 
consideration. Credits�will be awarded on a course-by-course basis.�

The guidelines for accepting, awarding and transferring credit as well as the appeals�
process will be described in the College Catalog and approved by the District Board of 
Trustees annually. Note that transferring coursework credits from another institution is not 
the only means by which the College awards credit (see 7.21 Acceleration Programs).�











 

 

   
 
 

  
   

  
 

      
          

        
        

        
             

        
 

 
 

     
        

           
         

             
        

  
 

        
        

      
        

          
 

      
      

 
        

           
            

           
        

   

COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE 

Board of Directors 
St. Johns River State College Foundation, Inc. 
Palatka, Florida 

We have audited the financial statements of the St. Johns River State College Foundation, Inc. 
(the Foundation) for the year ended March 31, 2025, and we will issue our report thereon dated August 15, 
2025. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities 
under generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, as well as certain 
information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such 
information in our letter to you dated April 10, 2025. Professional standards also require that we 
communicate to you the following information related to our audit: 

Significant Audit Matters 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by the Foundation are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new 
accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2025. 
We noted no transactions entered into by the Foundation during the year for which there is a lack of 
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial 
statements in the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions 
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance 
to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ 
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were: 

■ The fair value measurements of securities requires management to use certain assumptions and 
estimates pertaining to the fair value of its investments, which are described in Note 3. 

■ The remainder interest receivable recognized in connection with the Judson Wilhelm Irrevocable 
Trust, which requires management to estimate rates of return based on mortality tables, is described 
in Note 4. The Trust also includes a provision whereby the trustee may spend funds from the principal 
amount in the Trust on the lead beneficiary’s medical care. For these reasons, the actual value of 
funds received from the Trust may vary significantly from the amount recorded in the statement of 
net position. 
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Board of Directors 
St. Johns River State College Foundation, Inc. 
Palatka, Florida 

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these estimates in determining that they 
are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial 
statement users. The most sensitive disclosure affecting the financial statements was: 

■ The disclosures of fair value measurements in Note 3. 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit, other than 
those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. No such 
misstatements were noted during the audit. 

Disagreements with Management 
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or 
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial 
statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during 
the course of our audit. 

Management Representations 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated August 15, 2025. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves 
application of an accounting principle to the Foundation’s financial statements or a determination of the 
type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require 
the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To 
our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Foundation’s auditors. However, these 
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a 
condition to our retention. 
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Board of Directors 
St. Johns River State College Foundation, Inc. 
Palatka, Florida 

Other Matters 

We applied certain limited procedures to management’s discussion and analysis, which is required 
supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the financial statements. Our procedures consisted of 
inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the financial statements, and 
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and 
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 

Restriction on Use 

This information is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management 
of the Foundation and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified 
parties. 

August 15, 2025 
Gainesville, Florida 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

Board of Directors 
St. Johns River State College Foundation, Inc. 
Palatka, Florida 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the St. Johns River State College 
Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation), which comprise the statement of net position as of March 31, 2025, 
the related statements of revenues, expenses, changes in fund net position, and cash flows for the year 
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 
Foundation as of March 31, 2025, and the changes in its net position and its cash flows for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are required to be independent of the Foundation and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions 
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Foundation’s ability to 
continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to 
be issued. 
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Board of Directors 
St. Johns River State College Foundation, Inc. 
Palatka, Florida 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and, 
therefore, is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood 
that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based 
on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government 
Auditing Standards, we: 

◼ Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

◼ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures 
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. 

◼ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Foundation’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

◼ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

◼ Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that 
raise substantial doubt about the Foundation’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable 
period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is 
the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 
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Board of Directors 
St. Johns River State College Foundation, Inc. 
Palatka, Florida 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted 
of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, 
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express 
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide 
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Report on Summarized Comparative Information 
We have previously audited the Foundation’s 2024 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified 
audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated August 28, 2024. In our opinion, 
the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024, 
is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August 15, 
2025, on our consideration of the Foundation’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Foundation’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report 
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 
the Foundation’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

August 15, 2025 
Gainesville, Florida 
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ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE FOUNDATION, INC. 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

MARCH 31, 2025 

The following is management’s discussion and analysis of the financial activities of the St. Johns River State 
College Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation) for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025. The objective of this 
discussion and analysis is to focus on current activities, resulting changes, and currently known facts to 
provide an overall summary of the accompanying financial statements. It should be read in conjunction 
with the basic financial statements and accompanying notes. 

This report represents the Foundation leadership’s overview of the organization’s financial health and well-
being. Consequently, we assume full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all information. 
To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, the Foundation has established a 
comprehensive internal controls framework designed to protect the Foundation’s assets from loss, theft, 
or misuse. These controls also allow the external auditors to compile sufficient, reliable information for 
the preparation of the Foundation’s financial statements conforming to accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). Because the cost of internal controls should not 
outweigh their benefits, the Foundation’s controls have been designed to provide reasonable rather than 
absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. We confirm 
that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material 
respects. 

The Foundation’s financial statements have been audited by Purvis, Gray and Company, LLP, an 
independent firm of licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to 
provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the Foundation as of the fiscal year ended 
March 31, 2025, are free from material misstatement. The independent audit involved the following: a 
test-basis examination of evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements 
and evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used; the reasonableness of significant 
estimates made by the Foundation’s management; and evaluation of the overall financial statement 
presentation. Based upon the audit, the independent auditors concluded that there was a reasonable 
basis for rendering an unmodified opinion that the Foundation’s financial position as of March 31, 2025, 
and changes in its net assets and cash flows for the year then ended is fairly presented in conformity with 
GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial section of 
this report. 

Basic Financial Statements 
The Foundation is a special-purpose government, engaged only in business-type activities. Therefore, it 
presents only the financial statements required for enterprise funds, which consist of the Statement of 
Net Position, the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, and the Statement of 
Cash Flows. 

Financial Highlights 
The following presents condensed data about net position and change in net position for the fiscal years 
ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024: 
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ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE FOUNDATION, INC. 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

MARCH 31, 2025 

2025 2024
Assets:

Non-Capital Assets, Current 7,371,910$         6,877,013$       
Non-Capital Assets, Non-Current 3,588,035           3,538,169         

Total Assets 10,959,945         10,415,182       

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable -                           5,750                
Annuity Payable 10,600                10,600              
Non-Current Liabilities 2,721                   64,230              

Total Liabilities 13,321                80,580              

Deferred Inflows of Resources 195,246              134,541            
Net Position:

Restricted 7,374,122           7,058,678         
Unrestricted 3,377,256           3,141,383         

Total Net Position 10,751,378         10,200,061       

Change in Net Position
Operating Revenues:

Contributions 619,333              626,389            
Total Revenues 619,333              626,389            

Operating Expenses:
Scholarships 406,291              381,800            
General Program Expenses 212,369              106,439            
Other Expenses 215,921              169,644            

Total Operating Expenses 834,581              657,883            

Operating Income/Loss (215,248)             (31,494)             
Non-Operating Revenue 717,566              1,503,033         

Income Before Changes in Non-Expendable 502,318              1,471,539         

Endowment Contributions 48,999                17,513              

Change in Net Position 551,317              1,489,052         

Beginning Net Position 10,200,061         8,711,009         

Ending Net Position 10,751,378$       10,200,061$    

On March 31, 2025, the Foundation’s net position totaled $10,751,378. Of this amount: 

■ $3,377,256 may be used to provide college program support as well as general and administrative 
support. 

■ $3,914,084 represents funds that have been limited by donors with restrictions or for special 
purposes. 

■ $3,460,038 is the non-expendable portion of funds that are invested in perpetuity. 

The Foundation’s net position increased 5.41% ($551,317) from the previous fiscal year-end. 
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ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE FOUNDATION, INC. 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

MARCH 31, 2025 

The Foundation ended the 2024–2025 fiscal year with total assets of $10.96 million, a 5.23% increase from 
the prior fiscal year-end total of $10.42 million. 

Total liabilities decreased to $13,321 as of March 31, 2025, compared to $80,580 at the end of the previous 
fiscal year. This decrease is primarily due to the reduction in the annuity payable balance following the 
passing of one of the annuitants. 

Contributions totaled $619,333, remaining strong and consistent with prior year levels. Endowment 
contributions increased to $48,999, up from $17,513 in the previous year, reflecting renewed donor 
engagement in supporting the Foundation’s long-term scholarship programs. 

Management and general expenses, as well as all fundraising expenses, are paid from the Foundation’s 
operating budget, which is derived in part from unrestricted gifts, in-kind contributions, and other 
operating support from St. Johns River State College. The Foundation applied the 1.25% annual 
administrative assessment again in 2025. No salaries are paid from the Foundation’s funds, as the College 
supports all salaries. 

As of March 31, 2025, investment holdings account for approximately 78% of total assets. The purpose of 
the investment pool is to preserve and enhance the real purchasing power of contributed funds, while 
providing an earnings stream to support St. Johns River State College and its students. The value of the 
Foundation’s investments, including endowed and operating investments, totaled approximately $8.6 
million at year-end. 

Request for Information 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Foundation’s finances. Questions 
concerning any of the information in this report or requests for additional information should be 
addressed to the St. Johns River State College Foundation, Inc., 5001 St. Johns Avenue, Palatka, 
Florida 32177 or call (386) 312-4100. 
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ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE FOUNDATION, INC. 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

MARCH 31, 2025, 

WITH SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR MARCH 31, 2024 

Assets 
Current Assets: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Due from St. Johns River State College Student Housing Corp. 
Investments 

Total Current Assets 

2025 

$ 2,243,925 
44 

5,127,941 
7,371,910 

$ 

2024 

1,671,795 
44 

5,205,174 
6,877,013 

Non-Current Assets: 
Endowed Investments 
Irrevocable Trust Receivable 

Total Assets 

3,460,038 
127,997 

10,959,945 

3,411,111 
127,058 

10,415,182 

Liabilities 
Current Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable 
Annuity Payable 

Non-Current Liabilities: 
Annuity Payable 

Total Liabilities 

-
10,600 

2,721 
13,321 

5,750 
10,600 

64,230 
80,580 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Irrevocable Trust 
Charitable Annuity 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 

127,997 
67,249 

195,246 

127,058 
7,483 

134,541 

Net Position 
Unrestricted 
Restricted: 

Expendable 
Non-Expendable 

Total Net Position 

3,377,256 

3,914,084 
3,460,038 

$ 10,751,378 $ 

3,141,383 

3,647,567 
3,411,111 

10,200,061 

See accompanying notes. 
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ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE FOUNDATION, INC. 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025, 

WITH SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR MARCH 31, 2024 

2025 2024 
Restricted 

Non- Total Total 
Unrestricted Expendable Expendable Fund Fund 

Operating Revenues 
Contributions $ 64,212 $ 555,121 $ - $ 619,333 $ 626,389 

Total Operating Revenues 64,212 555,121 - 619,333 626,389 

Operating Expenses 
Program Services: 

Scholarships - 406,291 - 406,291 381,800 
Other College Support 35,525 176,844 - 212,369 106,439 

Total Program Services 35,525 583,135 - 618,660 488,239 
Fund-Raising 44,747 60,561 - 105,308 66,652 
Supporting Services: 

Management and General 79,228 - - 79,228 74,962 
Professional Fees 21,025 10,360 31,385 28,030 

Total Supporting Services 100,253 10,360 - 110,613 102,992 
Total Operating Expenses 180,525 654,056 - 834,581 657,883 

Operating (Loss) (116,313) (98,935) - (215,248) (31,494) 

Non-Operating Revenue 
Interest and Dividends 126,658 145,370 - 272,028 242,128 
Unrealized Gain on Fair 

Value Change of Investments 124,981 243,142 - 368,123 865,574 
Gain on Sale of Investments 27,045 50,370 - 77,415 395,331 

Total Non-Operating Revenue 278,684 438,882 - 717,566 1,503,033 

Change in Net Position Before 
Endowment Contributions 
and Fees 162,371 339,947 - 502,318 1,471,539 

Endowment Contributions - - 48,999 48,999 17,513 
Endowment Administrative Fee 74,522 (74,522) - - -
Interfund Transfers (1,020) 1,092 (72) - -

Change in Net Position 235,873 266,517 48,927 551,317 1,489,052 

Net Position, Beginning of Year 3,141,383 3,647,567 3,411,111 10,200,061 8,711,009 

Net Position, End of Year $ 3,377,256 $ 3,914,084 $ 3,460,038 $ 10,751,378 $ 10,200,061 

See accompanying notes. 
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ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE FOUNDATION, INC. 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025, 

WITH SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR MARCH 31, 2024 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Cash Received from Contributions and Support 
Payments for Scholarships 
Payments for General Student Expenses 
Payments for Other Expenses 

Net Cash (Used in) Operating Activities 

2025 

$ 619,333 
(406,291) 
(212,369) 
(221,671) 
(220,998) 

$ 

2024 

626,345 
(381,800) 
(106,439) 
(163,894) 

(25,788) 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
Proceeds from Sale of Investments 
Purchases of Investments 
Receipt of Interest and Dividends 
Payments on Annuities 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities 

1,817,365 
(1,334,664) 

272,028 
(10,600) 
744,129 

2,010,884 
(2,390,603) 

246,153 
(10,600) 

(144,166) 

Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities 
Receipts from Donors for Permanent Endowments 

Net Cash Provided by Non-Capital Financing Activities 
48,999 
48,999 

17,513 
17,513 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 572,130 (152,441) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 1,671,795 1,824,236 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 2,243,925 $ 1,671,795 

Schedule of Non-Cash Operating Activities 

Change in Fair Value of Investments $ 368,123 $ (628,776) 

See accompanying notes. 
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ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE FOUNDATION, INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

MARCH 31, 2025 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Reporting Entity 
The St. Johns River State College Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation) was formed in 1970 as a non-profit 
organization. The Foundation’s sole purpose is the support of the St. Johns River State College 
(the College) and its students. The primary goal of the Foundation is to further develop its scholarship 
program and to fund activities that promote the College. The Foundation is a direct support organization 
under Section 1004.70, Florida Statutes, and, for financial reporting purposes, is considered a component 
unit of the College. 

Basis of Presentation 
The financial statements of the Foundation have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP) as applicable to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) is the standard-setting body for governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. 

For financial reporting purposes, the Foundation is considered a special-purpose governmental entity 
engaged only in business-type activities. Accordingly, the financial activity of the Foundation is accounted 
for in a single business-type fund which, to observe restrictions placed on the use of resources, is further 
grouped into sub-accounts as follows: 

■ Unrestricted―represents resources available for operations without restriction. 

■ Restricted, Expendable―represents resources available only for scholarships or other eligible student 
related purposes. 

■ Restricted, Non-Expendable―represents contributions received, in which the principal amount is 
restricted in perpetuity by the donor, with income available only for scholarships or other eligible 
student related purposes. 

All restrictions are externally imposed; thus, no net position is restricted by enabling legislation. When 
both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Foundation’s policy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

Revenues of the Foundation are classified as operating, for primary activities, such as donor contributions 
and state matching funds, or non-operating, for ancillary activities, such as investment earnings. 

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 
The Foundation utilizes the economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting. 
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, 
regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, the Foundation considers all highly liquid investments 
with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. 

10 



     
    

 
 
 

 

 
         

 
  

         
       

          
  

 
     

         
              

  
 

        
            

    
 

      
      
     

 
  
        

          
  

 
    

          
 

  
          

 
   

        
      

 
     

 
  

 

 

ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE FOUNDATION, INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

MARCH 31, 2025 

Investments 
Investments are reported at fair value, except for money market investments, which are reported at cost. 

Donor-Restricted Endowments 
Investment income, including unrealized appreciation and depreciation, is allocated to the restricted 
expendable account on a pro rata basis based on the non-expendable endowment balance and the 
undistributed earnings associated with each endowment. In accordance with state law, these funds are 
then available for expenditure when the specific donor criteria are met. 

In the absence of donor stipulations or law to the contrary, losses on the investments of a donor-restricted 
endowment fund reduce restricted expendable net position to the extent that donor-imposed temporary 
restrictions on net appreciation of the fund have not been met before a loss occurs. Any remaining loss 
reduces unrestricted net position. 

If losses reduce the assets of a donor-restricted endowment fund below the level required by the donor 
stipulations or law, gains that restore the fair value of the assets of the endowment fund to the required 
level are classified as increases in unrestricted net position. 

After the fair value of the assets of the endowment fund equals the required level, gains that are restricted 
by the donor are classified as increases in restricted expendable net position or restricted non-expendable 
net position, depending on the donor’s restrictions. 

Contribution Receivable 
Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected within one year and in future years are 
recorded at net realizable value. Conditional promises to give are not included as support until the 
conditions are substantially met. 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
A deferred inflow of resources is an acquisition of net assets that is applicable to a future reporting period. 

Income Tax 
The Foundation is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. 

Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make various 
estimates. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Note 2 - Deposits and Investments 

The Foundation’s deposits and investments are summarized below: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,243,925$          
Investments 5,127,941            
Endowed Investments 3,460,038            
Total Deposits and Investments 10,831,904$        

11 



     
    

 
 
 

 

   
 

 
 

        
     

 

 
 

      
 

            
        

         
      

          
        

         
 

        
         

       
 

        
           

     
 

         
      

  
 

     
 

       
         

      
     

ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE FOUNDATION, INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

MARCH 31, 2025 

For the purpose of risk disclosures, deposits and investments are comprised of the following: 

Deposits with Financial Institutions 1,467,485$          

Investments 9,364,419            
Total Deposits and Investments 10,831,904$        

The following schedules of the maturities and average credit ratings for the Foundation’s investments 
held as of March 31, 2025, are as follows: 

Fair Average Credit
Value Less than 1 1-5 6-10 N/A Quality Ratings

Bonds and Notes 1,888,380$          289,967$             659,911$             938,502$             -$                         Baa1
Exchange Trade Funds:

Fixed Income 31,982                 -                           -                           31,982                 -                           N/A
Equities 105,480               -                           -                           -                           105,480               N/A

Mutual Funds:
Fixed Income 83,863                 -                           -                           -                           83,863                 N/A
Equities 1,934,479            -                           -                           -                           1,934,479            N/A
Real Estate 369,878               -                           -                           -                           369,878               N/A

Equities 4,173,917            -                           -                           -                           4,173,917            N/A

8,587,979            289,967$             659,911$             970,484$             6,667,617$          

Cash Equivalents 776,440               
Total Investments 9,364,419$          

Maturity in Years

The Foundation may be exposed to the following risks associated with its investment portfolio: 

Credit Risk―The risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. 
The Foundation’s investment policy requires that debt securities be rated “Baa” or “BBB” or better by 
Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s rating services, respectively. The Foundation’s investment policy also sets 
allowable ranges for allocation of assets as follows: domestic equity (mutual funds) (50-70%); 
international equity (10-20%); intermediate and long-term bonds (10-20%); real estate (0-10%); and cash 
equivalents (2-10%). Charitable gift annuity investments are limited to no more than 50% equities 
(including mutual funds) and no more than 10% may be invested in any one stock or fund. 

Interest Rate Risk―The risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment. The Foundation’s investment policy includes asset allocation guidelines and investment 
management structure to ensure adequate diversification to reduce the volatility of investment returns. 

Custodial Credit Risk―The risk that, in the event of failure of the counterparty, the value of investments 
or collateral securities in the possession of an outside party will not be recoverable. None of the 
Foundation’s investments are subject to custodial credit risk. 

Concentration of Credit Risk―The risk that any one issuer, representing a concentration greater than 5% 
of total investments, may not fulfill its obligations. None of the Foundation’s investments exceeded this 
concentration level. 

Note 3 - Fair Value Measurement 

The Foundation categorizes its fair value measurements with the fair value hierarchy established by GAAP. 
The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs 
are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable 
inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. 
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ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE FOUNDATION, INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

MARCH 31, 2025 

The Foundation has the following recurring fair value measurements as of March 31, 2025: 

■ Common stock - Valued using quoted market prices. 
■ Exchange traded funds - Valued using quoted market prices. 
■ Exchange traded funds fixed income - Valued using quoted market prices. 
■ Mutual funds - Valued at the daily closing price as reported by the fund. 
■ Irrevocable trust receivable - Valued using income approach, present value technique. 

The following table summarizes the Foundation’s assets for which fair values are determined on a 
recurring basis: 

Quoted Prices in Significant Significant
Active Market for Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs 

Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 
Investments

Bonds and Notes 1,888,380$           -$                           1,888,380$           -$                           
Equities 4,173,917              4,173,917              -                             -                             
Exchange Traded Funds 137,462                 137,462                 -                             -                             
Mutual Funds 2,388,220              2,018,342              -                             369,878                 

Total Investments
Measured at Fair Value 8,587,979$           6,329,721$           1,888,380$           369,878$               

Irrevocable Trust Receivable 127,997$               -$                           127,997$               -$                           

Note 4 - Irrevocable Trust Receivable 

The Foundation is one of the residual beneficiaries of an irrevocable trust established in fiscal year 2013. 
Trust funds are held and invested by a third-party trustee, with earnings used for the surviving spouse, as 
long as she lives and remains unmarried. It is estimated that the principal of the trust will grow at 5% per 
year. The present value of the estimated distribution of the trust is reported as an irrevocable trust 
receivable of $127,997 as of March 31, 2025. 

Note 5 - Charitable Annuity 

The Foundation is a lead interest beneficiary of an irrevocable agreement created in July 2016, in the total 
amount of $200,000. Under the terms of the agreement, the Foundation agrees to make annual annuity 
payments of $10,600. During the year ended March 31, 2025, one of the donors passed away. The 
Foundation’s obligation continues until the annual payment immediately preceding the death of the last 
surviving donor. The present value of the future obligation is $13,321. In addition, 10% ($1,332) has been 
restricted as a required reserve. The remainder is available for scholarships for degree-seeking, in-state 
students enrolled at the College, subject to certain criteria. 

Changes in the annuity payable are summarized below: 

Balance Balance Due Within
April 1, 2024 Additions Deductions March 31, 2025 One Year

Annuity 74,830$            -$                      (61,509)$           13,321$            10,600$            

13 



     
    

 
 
 

 

     
 

       
           

      
    

 
    

 
        

 
 

     
 

 
 

    
 

             
          

            
       

        

ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE FOUNDATION, INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

MARCH 31, 2025 

Note 6 - Contributed Facilities, Services, and Property 

The Foundation receives free use of certain facilities and certain contributed services from the College. 
As a matter of accounting practice, the value of such facilities and services is not recorded in the 
Foundation’s financial statements. Contributed property used to further the purposes of the Foundation 
is recorded at estimated acquisition value at the date of donation. 

Note 7 - Restricted Net Position 

Restricted, expendable net position of $3,914,084 as of March 31, 2025, is available for scholarships and 
other eligible student-related purposes. 

Changes in restricted, non-expendable net position are as follows: 

Balance Current Investment Income Balance

March 31, Year Income Available for March 31,

Endowment 2024 Contributions (Loss) Expenditures 2025

Thrasher-Horne 1,878,732$        -$                    215,099$        (215,098)             1,878,733$     

Paul and Juanita Boyette 204,552             -                      26,334            (26,334)                204,552          

Putnam County Scholar 180,039             1,561              18,277            (18,277)                181,600          

Irwin and Elizabeth Zekaria 125,000             -                      30,816            (30,816)                125,000          

Georgia Pacific 123,165             -                      19,642            (19,643)                123,164          

Eva Mae Kelly 115,041             -                      15,652            (15,652)                115,041          

Dan and Katie Martinez 100,000             -                      14,569            (14,569)                100,000          

Nancy K. Ramsey Memorial 100,000             -                      14,400            (14,400)                100,000          

Athletic Association 62,000                10,000            8,877              (8,877)                  72,000            

Patty and Joel Weiss 51,373                -                      5,514              (5,586)                  51,301            

Bob Hudson 50,000                -                      11,739            (11,739)                50,000            

Joe and Linda Pickens 50,000                -                      7,911              (7,911)                  50,000            

Olivia Lay 50,000                -                      6,841              (6,841)                  50,000            

Cliff Stearns 50,000                25,338            4,054              (4,054)                  75,338            

Talmadge - Noyes 41,945                -                      5,873              (5,873)                  41,945            

John Tindall 28,164                -                      4,497              (4,497)                  28,164            

Bob Smith 26,000                2,000              (3,151)             3,151                   28,000            

Sheretz 25,000                -                      4,026              (4,026)                  25,000            

Lillie M. Avrett 25,000                -                      3,241              (3,241)                  25,000            

St. Augustine Rotary 25,000                -                      3,771              (3,771)                  25,000            

Robert McLendon, Jr. 25,100                -                      5,668              (5,668)                  25,100            

C.L. Overturf 25,000                -                      2,983              (2,983)                  25,000            

Boots and Philip 25,000                -                      3,791              (3,791)                  25,000            

Ben Zirbel 25,000                -                      2,429              (2,429)                  25,000            

Mark Breidenstein -                          10,100            166                 (166)                     10,100            

Total 3,411,111$        48,999$          433,019$        (433,091)$           3,460,038$     

Note 8 - Administrative Fees 

In order to support its operations, the Foundation assesses an endowment fee. The endowment fee 
represents an assessment for management and administration of endowed and board appropriated 
funds. The endowment fee is assessed on a quarterly basis based on the fair market value of the fund. 
For the year ended March 31, 2025, the Board of Directors approved a 1.25% administrative fee on 
endowed and board appropriated funds of $74,522 and $2,858, respectively. 
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ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE FOUNDATION, INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

MARCH 31, 2025 

Note 9 - Board Appropriations 

As summarized below, the Board has appropriated certain amounts of the unrestricted net position for 
specific purposes. These internal-imposed limitations on net position do not relate to donor stipulations. 

Unrestricted Net Position as of March 31, 2025 3,377,256$          

Board Appropriations for the Thrasher - Horne Center of the Arts (THCA)

Balance Transfer from THCA Membership Account (50,000)                

Balance Transfer from THCA Sponsorships (36,545)                

Accumulated Net Appreciation (149,667)              

Administrative Fee 2,858                    

Total Board Appropriations (233,354)              

Unappropriated Unrestricted Net Position 3,143,902$          

Note 10 - Revocable Split-Interest Bequest 

The Foundation is a beneficiary of a bequest held in trust by the Jacksonville Community Foundation, Inc. 
who maintains variance power over trust assets. The trust directs that $300,000 be permanently 
endowed and administered by the aforementioned third-party, with earnings distributed to the 
Foundation on a periodic basis to provide scholarships annually to one recipient from each of the high 
schools in Putnam County. As of December 2015, the bequest was fully funded. 

Note 11 - Transfers 

From time-to-time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment funds 
may fall below the level that the donor requires the Foundation to retain as a fund of perpetual duration. 
Since no endowment funds fell below required levels for the year ended March 31, 2025, there were no 
transfers from unrestricted funds to restricted non-expendable funds. 

Note 12 - Risk Management 

The Foundation is exposed to various risks of loss related to general liability and directors’ and officers’ 
liability. The Foundation purchases commercial insurance to manage these risks. There have been no 
losses in excess of coverage in the last three years. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Board of Directors 
St. Johns River State College Foundation, Inc. 
Palatka, Florida 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the St. Johns River 
State College Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2025, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Foundation’s financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated August 15, 2025. 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Foundation’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the Foundation’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely 
basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is 
less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Foundation’s financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, non-compliance with which could have a direct and material 
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Board of Directors 
St. Johns River State College Foundation, Inc. 
Palatka, Florida 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions 
was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our 
tests disclosed no instances of non-compliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of This Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation’s 
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Foundation’s internal control and compliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

August 15, 2025 
Gainesville, Florida 
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Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is

true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

Signature of officer Date

Type or print name and title

Date PTINPreparer's name Preparer's signature

Firm's name Firm's EIN

Firm's address

Phone no.

 

Form

Name of organization

Doing business as

Number and street Telephone number

City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code

Is this a group return 

for subordinates?Name and address of principal officer: ~~

If "No," attach a list. See instructions

Group exemption number

Tax-exempt status:

Briefly describe the organization's mission or most significant activities:

Check this box if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.

Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1a)

Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1b)

Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2024 (Part V, line 2a)

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary)

Total unrelated business revenue from Part VIII, column (C), line 12

Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, Part I, line 11

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

������������������

Contributions and grants (Part VIII, line 1h) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Program service revenue (Part VIII, line 2g) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~Investment income (Part VIII, column (A), lines 3, 4, and 7d)

Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8c, 9c, 10c, and 11e) ~~~~~~~~

Total revenue - add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) ���

Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1-3)

Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line 4)

Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5-10)

~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~

Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line 11e)

Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25)

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11f-24e)

Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25)

Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 from line 12

~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~

����������������

Total assets (Part X, line 16)

Total liabilities (Part X, line 26)

Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from line 20

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

��������������

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? See instructions ���������������������

LHA Form (2024)

Part I Summary

Signature BlockPart II
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Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax990 2024

 
 
 
 

 
     

   
       

       

 

 

   

APR 1, 2024 MAR 31, 2025

ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE
FOUNDATION, INC.

23-7336585

386-312-42225001 ST. JOHNS AVENUE
2,772,725.

PALATKA, FL  32177
XMELISSA C. MILLER

SJRSTATE.EDU/FOUNDATION
X 1970 FL

13
12
0

20
0.
0.

619,939.
0.

349,443.
15,046.

1,285,379. 984,428.
406,291.

0.
0.
0.

56,961.
379,943.

657,883. 786,234.
627,496. 198,194.

10,415,182. 10,959,945.
215,121. 208,567.

10,200,061. 10,751,378.

MELISSA C. MILLER, CHAIRWOMAN

P00020448EMILY J. NEWSOM, CPA
59-0548468PURVIS, GRAY & COMPANY, LLP

222 NE 1ST ST
GAINESVILLE, FL 32601 (352) 378-2461

X

5001 ST. JOHNS AVENUE, PALATKA, FL  32177

SEE SCHEDULE O

X

643,902.
0.

641,477.
0.

381,800.
0.
0.
0.

276,083.

11/21/25



Code: Expenses $ including grants of $ Revenue $

Code: Expenses $ including grants of $ Revenue $

Code: Expenses $ including grants of $ Revenue $

Expenses $ including grants of $ Revenue $
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1

2
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Yes No

Yes No

4a

4b

4c

4d

4e

 

Form 990 (2024) Page 

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part III ����������������������������

Briefly describe the organization's mission:

Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the

prior Form 990 or 990-EZ?

If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O.

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program services?

If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O.

~~~~~~

Describe the organization's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by expenses.

Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others, the total expenses, and

revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

( ) ( ) ( )

( ) ( ) ( )

( ) ( ) ( )

Other program services (Describe on Schedule O.)

( ) ( )

Total program service expenses

Form (2024)

2
Statement of Program Service AccomplishmentsPart III

990

 

   

   

TO SUPPORT ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE AND ITS STUDENTS THROUGH,

X

X

AMONG OTHER THINGS, A SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT

406,291. 406,291.

SCHOLARSHIPS.

FOUNDATION, INC. 23-7336585
ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE

SUPPORT.

SUPPORTED ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE STUDENTS BY FUNDING

212,369.
SUPPORTED ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE STUDENT PROGRAMS AND
ACTIVITIES.

618,660.

X

2
 12371121 781931 18607                 2024.05000 ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COL 18607__1                                                               
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Yes No

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

Section 501(c)(3) organizations.

a

b

c

d

e

f

a

b

11a

11b

11c

11d

11e

11f

12a

12b

13

14a

14b

15

16

17

18

19

20a

20b

21

a

b

20

21

a

b

If "Yes," complete Schedule A

Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors

If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part I

If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part II

If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part III

If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part I

If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part II

If "Yes," complete

Schedule D, Part III

If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IV

If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part V

If "Yes," complete Schedule D,

Part VI

If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VII

If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VIII

If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IX

If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X

If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X

If "Yes," complete

Schedule D, Parts XI and XII

If "Yes," and if the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts XI and XII is optional
If "Yes," complete Schedule E

If "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts I and IV

If "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts II and IV

If "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts III and IV

If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part I.

If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part II

If "Yes,"

complete Schedule G, Part III

If "Yes," complete Schedule H

If "Yes," complete Schedule I, Parts I and II

Form 990 (2024) Page 

Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)?

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Is the organization required to complete ? See instructions

Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to candidates for

public office? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

 Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h) election in effect

during the tax year? 

Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues, assessments, or

similar amounts as defined in Rev. Proc. 98-19? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors have the right to

provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? 

Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space,

the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? 

Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability; serve as a custodian for

amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt negotiation services?

Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in donor-restricted endowments

or in quasi-endowments? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

If the organization's answer to any of the following questions is "Yes," then complete Schedule D, Parts VI, VII, VIII, IX, or X,

as applicable.

Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Did the organization report an amount for investments - other securities in Part X, line 12, that is 5% or more of its total

assets reported in Part X, line 16? 

Did the organization report an amount for investments - program related in Part X, line 13, that is 5% or more of its total

assets reported in Part X, line 16? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15, that is 5% or more of its total assets reported in

Part X, line 16? 

Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 25? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~

Did the organization's separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses

the organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? 

Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? 

~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year?

~~~~~

Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii)? 

Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States?

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundraising, business,

investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investments valued at $100,000

or more? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for any

foreign organization? 

Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other assistance to 

or for foreign individuals? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on Part IX,

column (A), lines 6 and 11e?  See instructions ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on Part VIII, lines

1c and 8a? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line 9a? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

If "Yes" to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return? ~~~~~~~~~~

Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or

domestic government on Part IX, column (A), line 1? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~��������������

Form  (2024)
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Part IV Checklist of Required Schedules
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X
X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X
X

X

X

X

X

X

ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

FOUNDATION, INC. 23-7336585

3
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Yes No

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

22

23

24a

24b

24c

24d

25a

25b

26

27

28a

28b

28c

29

30

31

32

33

34

35a

35b

36

37

38

a

b

c

d

a

b

Section 501(c)(3),  501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. 

a

b

c

a

b

Section 501(c)(3) organizations. 

Note: 

Yes No

1a

b

c

1a

1b

1c

(continued)

If "Yes," complete Schedule I, Parts I and III

If "Yes," complete

Schedule J

If "Yes," answer lines 24b through 24d and complete

Schedule K. If "No," go to line 25a

If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part I

If "Yes," complete

Schedule L, Part I

 If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part II

If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part III

If

"Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV

If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV

If

"Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV

If "Yes," complete Schedule M

If "Yes," complete Schedule M

If "Yes," complete Schedule N, Part I

If "Yes," complete

Schedule N, Part II

If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part I

If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part II, III, or IV, and 

Part V, line 1

If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2

If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2

If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part VI

Form 990 (2024) Page 

Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on

Part IX, column (A), line 2?  ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Did the organization answer "Yes" to Part VII, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5, about compensation of the organization's current

and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than $100,000 as of the

last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 2002? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception?

Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year to defease

any tax-exempt bonds?

Did the organization act as an "on behalf of" issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year?

~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~

Did the organization engage in an excess benefit

transaction with a disqualified person during the year? 

Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior year, and

that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5 or 22, for receivables from or payables to any current

or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%

controlled entity or family member of any of these persons? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to any current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee,

creator or founder, substantial contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee member, or to a 35% controlled

entity (including an employee thereof) or family member of any of these persons? ~~~

Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties? (See the Schedule L, Part IV,

instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):

A current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, or substantial contributor? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

A family member of any individual described in line 28a? 

A 35% controlled entity of one or more individuals and/or organizations described in line 28a or 28b? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in noncash contributions? 

Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified conservation

contributions? 

~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? 

Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? 

~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations

sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-3? 

Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)?

If "Yes" to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled entity

within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related organization?

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization

and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? ~~~~~~~~

Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations on Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and 19?

All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O �������������������������������

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part V ���������������������������

Enter the number reported in box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable ~~~~~~~~~~~

Enter the number of Forms W-2G included on line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable ~~~~~~~~~~

Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable gaming

(gambling) winnings to prize winners? �������������������������������������������

Form  (2024)
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Part IV Checklist of Required Schedules

Part V Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance
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X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X

X

X

X

FOUNDATION, INC. 23-7336585
ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE

0
0

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

4
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Yes No

2

3

4

5

6

7

a

b

2a

2b

3a

3b

4a

5a

5b

5c

6a

6b

7a

7b

7c

7e

7f

7g

7h

8

9a

9b

a

b

a

b

a

b

c

a

b

Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).

a

b

c

d

e

f

g

h

7d

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. 

Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.

a

b

Section 501(c)(7) organizations. 

a

b

10a

10b

Section 501(c)(12) organizations. 

a

b

11a

11b

a

b

Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. 12a

12b

Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.

Note:

a

b

c

a

b

13a

13b

13c

14a

14b

15

16

17

Section 501(c)(21) organizations.

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

(continued)

If "No" to line 3b, provide an explanation on Schedule O

If "No," provide an explanation on Schedule O

Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods and services provided to the payor?

Form  (2024)

Form 990 (2024) Page 

Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax Statements,

filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return ~~~~~~~~~~

If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? ~~~~~~~~~~

Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year?

If "Yes," has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~

At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over, a

financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)? ~~~~~~~

If "Yes," enter the name of the foreign country

See instructions for filing requirements for FinCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR).

Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year?

Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction?

~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~

If "Yes" to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the organization solicit

any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions?

If "Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts

were not tax deductible?

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

If "Yes," did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided?

Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was required

to file Form 8282?

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

����������������������������������������������������

If "Yes," indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year

Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract?

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract?

If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required?

If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C?

~

Did a donor advised fund maintained by the 

sponsoring organization have excess business holdings at any time during the year? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 4966?

Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person?

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Enter:

Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIII, line 12

Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of club facilities

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~

Enter:

Gross income from members or shareholders

Gross income from other sources. (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources against

amounts due or received from them.)

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 1041?

If "Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year ������

Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state?

 See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O.

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which the

organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans

Enter the amount of reserves on hand

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year?

If "Yes," has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~

Is the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or

excess parachute payment(s) during the year?

If "Yes," see the instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N.

Is the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment income?

If "Yes," complete Form 4720, Schedule O.

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~

 Did the trust, or any disqualified or other person engage in any activities

that would result in the imposition of an excise tax under section 4951, 4952 or 4953?

If "Yes," complete Form 6069.

5
Part V Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance

990

X

X

X

X
X

X

X

X

X
X

X

0

FOUNDATION, INC. 23-7336585
ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE

X
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Yes No

1a

1b

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

a

b

2

3

4

5

6

7a

7b

8a

8b

9

a

b

a

b

Yes No

10

11

a

b

10a

10b

11a

12a

12b

12c

13

14

15a

15b

16a

16b

a

b

12a

b

c

13

14

15

a

b

16a

b

17

18

19

20

For each "Yes" response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a "No" response
to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes on Schedule O. See instructions.

If "Yes," provide the names and addresses on Schedule O

(This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)

If "No," go to line 13

If "Yes," describe

on Schedule O how this was done

 (explain on Schedule O)

If there are material differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or if the governing

body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar committee, explain on Schedule O.

Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the year by the following:

Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give rise to conflicts?

Form  (2024)

Form 990 (2024) Page 

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VI ���������������������������

Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year

Enter the number of voting members included on line 1a, above, who are independent

~~~~~~

~~~~~~

Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with any other

officer, director, trustee, or key employee? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct supervision

of officers, directors, trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was filed?

Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization's assets?

Did the organization have members or stockholders?

~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint one or

more members of the governing body?

Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members, stockholders, or

persons other than the governing body?

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

The governing body?

Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body?

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at the

organization's mailing address? �����������������

Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates?

If "Yes," did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters, affiliates,

and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization's exempt purposes?

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the form?

Describe on Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990.

Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~

Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy?

Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy?

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by independent

persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?

The organization's CEO, Executive Director, or top management official

Other officers or key employees of the organization

If "Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process on Schedule O. See instructions.

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement with a

taxable entity during the year? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

If "Yes," did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its participation

in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the organization's

exempt status with respect to such arrangements? ������������������������������������

List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed

Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A, if applicable), 990, and 990-T (section 501(c)(3)s only) available

for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.

Own website Another's website Upon request Other

Describe on Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy, and financial

statements available to the public during the tax year.

State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization's books and records 

6
Part VI Governance, Management, and Disclosure. 

Section A. Governing Body and Management

Section B. Policies 

Section C. Disclosure

990

 

       

13

12

X
X

X

X
X

X
X
X

X

X
X
X
X

X

X

X

X

X
X

X

JOLYNN CARTER - 386-312-4100
5001 ST. JOHNS AVENUE, PALATKA, FL  32177

NONE

FOUNDATION, INC. 23-7336585
ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE

X

X

6
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(do not check more than one
box, unless person is both an
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432007  12-10-24

 current

 

Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees

1a  
current 

current 

former 

former directors or trustees 

(A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)

 

Form 990 (2024) Page 

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VII ���������������������������

Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year.
¥ List all of the organization's officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of compensation.

Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.

¥ List all of the organization's key employees, if any. See the instructions for definition of "key employee."

¥ List the organization's five  highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee)
who received reportable compensation (box 5 of Form W-2, box 6 of Form 1099-MISC, and/or box 1 of Form 1099-NEC) of more than
$100,000 from the organization and any related organizations.

¥ List all of the organization's officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

¥ List all of the organization's that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the organization,
more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.
See the instructions for the order in which to list the persons above.

Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

PositionName and title Average 
hours per

week 
(list any

hours for
related

organizations
below
line)

Reportable
compensation

from 
the

organization
(W-2/1099-MISC/

1099-NEC)

Reportable
compensation
from related

organizations
(W-2/1099-MISC/

1099-NEC)

Estimated
amount of

other
compensation

from the
organization
and related

organizations

Form (2024)

7
Part VII Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated

Employees, and Independent Contractors

990

 

 

(1)  JOE H PICKENS JD
DIRECTOR
(2)  DR MELANIE BROWN

(3)  KATE ADORNETTO

(4)  RON W BROWN 

(5)  JIM BUSH

(6)  JAN CONRAD

(7)  MELISSA C MILLER

(8)  JOYCE OLIVER

(9)  JOHN RAYMOND THEOBOLD

(10) KARLA FLAGG-WRIGHT

(11) JOLYNN CARTER

(12) LINDA FORDE

(13) WENDALL DAVIS

(14) TOM HUNTER

(15) LYNN POWERS

(16) MARY TABOR

VC THRU 12/24, DIRECTOR

SECRETARY- THRU 11/24

VICE CHAIR- BEG 1/25

DIRECTOR

TREAS THRU 12/24, DIRECTOR

CHAIRWOMAN

DIRECTOR

DIRECTOR

DIRECTOR

SECRETARY- BEG 1/25

TREASURER- BEG 1/25

DIRECTOR

DIRECTOR

DIRECTOR

DIRECTOR

1.00

1.00

40.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

40.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

0.

0.

0.

0.

0.

0.

0.

0.

0.

0.

0.

0.

0.

0.

0.

0.

429,722.

233,252.

92,178.

0.

0.

0.

0.

0.

0.

0.

0.

0.

0.

0.

0.

0.

143,743.

84,915.

22,260.

0.

0.

0.

0.

0.

0.

0.

0.

0.

0.

0.

0.

0.

FOUNDATION, INC. 23-7336585
ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE

40.00

40.00

1.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

1.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

7
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(do not check more than one
box, unless person is both an
officer and a director/trustee)

432008  12-10-24

 

Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees 

(B) (C)(A) (D) (E) (F)

1b

c

d

Subtotal

Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A

Total (add lines 1b and 1c)

2

Yes No

3

4

5

former 

3

4

5

Section B. Independent Contractors

1

(A) (B) (C)

2

(continued)

If "Yes," complete Schedule J for such individual

If "Yes," complete Schedule J for such individual

If "Yes," complete Schedule J for such person

Page Form 990 (2024)

PositionAverage 
hours per

week
(list any

hours for
related

organizations
below
line)

Name and title Reportable
compensation

from 
the

organization
(W-2/1099-MISC/

1099-NEC)

Reportable
compensation
from related

organizations
(W-2/1099-MISC/

1099-NEC)

Estimated
amount of

other
compensation

from the
organization
and related

organizations

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~

����������������������~��

Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of reportable

compensation from the organization

Did the organization list any officer, director, trustee, key employee, or highest compensated employee on

line 1a? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the organization

and related organizations greater than $150,000? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual for services

rendered to the organization? ������������������������

Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of compensation from 

the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year.

Name and business address Description of services Compensation

Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than

$100,000 of compensation from the organization

Form  (2024)

8
Part VII

990

0. 755,152. 250,918.
0. 0. 0.

0

0

NONE

0. 755,152. 250,918.

X

FOUNDATION, INC.

X

X

23-7336585
ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE

8
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Noncash contributions included in lines 1a-1f

432009  12-10-24

Business Code

Business Code

Total revenue. 

 

(A) (B) (C) (D)

1 a

b

c

d

e

f

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

a

b

c

d

e

f

gg

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
, 

G
if

ts
, 

G
ra

n
ts

a
n

d
 O

th
e

r 
S

im
ila

r 
A

m
o

u
n

ts

h Total. 

a

b

c

d

e

f

g

2

P
ro

g
ra

m
 S

e
rv

ic
e

R
e

ve
n

u
e

Total. 

3

4

5

6 a

b

c

d

6a

6b

6c

7 a

7a

7b

7c

b

c

d

a

b

c

8

8a

8b

9 a

b

c

9a

9b

10 a

b

c

10a

10b

O
th

e
r 

R
e

ve
n

u
e

11 a

b

c

d

e

M
is

c
e

lla
n

e
o

u
s

R
e

ve
n

u
e

Total. 

12

Revenue excluded
from tax under

sections 512 - 514

All other contributions, gifts, grants, and

similar amounts not included above

Gross amount from sales of

assets other than inventory

cost or other basis

and sales expenses

Gross income from fundraising events

See instructions

Form  (2024)

Page Form 990 (2024)

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIII �������������������������

Total revenue Related or exempt
function revenue

Unrelated
business revenue

Federated campaigns

Membership dues

~~~~~

~~~~~~~

Fundraising events

Related organizations

~~~~~~~

~~~~~

Government grants (contributions)

~

$

Add lines 1a-1f ������������������

All other program service revenue ~~~~~

Add lines 2a-2f �������������������

Investment income (including dividends, interest, and

other similar amounts)

Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Royalties �������������������������

(i) Real (ii) Personal

Gross rents

Less: rental expenses

Rental income or (loss)

Net rental income or (loss)

~~~~~

~

�����������������

(i) Securities (ii) Other

Less: 

Gain or (loss)

~~~

~~~~~

Net gain or (loss) ���������������������

 (not

including $ of

contributions reported on line 1c). See

Part IV, line 18 ~~~~~~~~~~~~

Less: direct expenses ~~~~~~~~

Net income or (loss) from fundraising events �������

Gross income from gaming activities. See

Part IV, line 19 ~~~~~~~~~~~~

Less: direct expenses

Net income or (loss) from gaming activities

~~~~~~~~

��������

Gross sales of inventory, less returns

and allowances ~~~~~~~~~~~~

Less: cost of goods sold

Net income or (loss) from sales of inventory

~~~~~~~

��������

All other revenue ~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Add lines 11a-11d �����������������

���������������

9
Part VIII Statement of Revenue

990

 

27,697.

85,848.

506,394.

619,939.
15,000.

FOUNDATION, INC.

984,428. 0. 0. 364,489.

23-7336585
ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE

272,028. 272,028.

1,817,365.

1,739,950.
77,415.

77,415. 77,415.

63,393.
48,347.

15,046. 15,046.

27,697.

9
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if following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720)

432010  12-10-24

Total functional expenses. 

Joint costs.

 

(A) (B) (C) (D)

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

a

b

c

d

e

f

g

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

a

b

c

d

e

25

26

Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).

Grants and other assistance to domestic organizations

and domestic governments. See Part IV, line 21

Compensation not included above to disqualified 

persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and 

persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B)

Pension plan accruals and contributions (include

section 401(k) and 403(b) employer contributions)

Professional fundraising services. See Part IV, line 17

(If line 11g amount exceeds 10% of line 25,

column (A), amount, list line 11g expenses on Sch O.)

Other expenses. Itemize expenses not covered 
above. (List miscellaneous expenses on line 24e. If
line 24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column (A),
amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule O.)

Add lines 1 through 24e

 Complete this line only if the organization

reported in column (B) joint costs from a combined

educational campaign and fundraising solicitation.

Check here

 

Form 990 (2024) Page 

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX ��������������������������

Total expenses Program service
expenses

Management and
general expenses

Fundraising
expenses

~

Grants and other assistance to domestic

individuals. See Part IV, line 22 ~~~~~~~

Grants and other assistance to foreign

organizations, foreign governments, and foreign

individuals. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16 ~~~

Benefits paid to or for members ~~~~~~~

Compensation of current officers, directors,

trustees, and key employees ~~~~~~~~

~~~

Other salaries and wages ~~~~~~~~~~

Other employee benefits ~~~~~~~~~~

Payroll taxes ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Fees for services (nonemployees):

Management

Legal

Accounting

Lobbying

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Investment management fees

Other. 

~~~~~~~~

Advertising and promotion

Office expenses

Information technology

Royalties

~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Occupancy ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~Travel

Payments of travel or entertainment expenses

for any federal, state, or local public officials ~

Conferences, conventions, and meetings ~~

Interest

Payments to affiliates

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~

Depreciation, depletion, and amortization

Insurance

~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

All other expenses

Form (2024)

Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b,
7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIII.

10
Statement of Functional ExpensesPart IX

990

 

 

406,291.

49,869.

212,369.
56,961.

786,234.

60,744.

406,291.

60,744.

49,869.

212,369.
56,961.

618,660. 110,613. 56,961.

GENERAL STUDENT ACTIVIT
ENTERTAINMENT & CIVIC

FOUNDATION, INC. 23-7336585
ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE

10
 12371121 781931 18607                 2024.05000 ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COL 18607__1                                                               



432011  12-10-24

 

(A) (B)

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10c

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

a

b

10a

10b

A
s
s
e

ts

Total assets. 

L
ia

b
ili

ti
e

s

Total liabilities. 

Organizations that follow FASB ASC 958, check here

and complete lines 27, 28, 32, and 33.

27

28

Organizations that do not follow FASB ASC 958, check here

and complete lines 29 through 33.

29

30

31

32

33

N
e

t 
A

s
s
e

ts
 o

r 
F

u
n

d
 B

a
la

n
c

e
s

 

Form 990 (2024) Page 

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X �����������������������������

Beginning of year End of year

Cash - non-interest-bearing

Savings and temporary cash investments

Pledges and grants receivable, net

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Accounts receivable, net ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Loans and other receivables from any current or former officer, director,

trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%

controlled entity or family member of any of these persons ~~~~~~~~~

Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined

under section 4958(f)(1)), and persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) ~~

Notes and loans receivable, net

Inventories for sale or use

Prepaid expenses and deferred charges

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other

basis. Complete Part VI of Schedule D

Less: accumulated depreciation

~~~

~~~~~~

Investments - publicly traded securities

Investments - other securities. See Part IV, line 11

Investments - program-related. See Part IV, line 11

Intangible assets

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Other assets. See Part IV, line 11 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal line 33) ����������

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Grants payable

Deferred revenue

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Tax-exempt bond liabilities

Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~

Loans and other payables to any current or former officer, director,

trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%

controlled entity or family member of any of these persons ~~~~~~~~~

Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties ~~~~~~

Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties ~~~~~~~~

Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third

parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X

of Schedule D ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Add lines 17 through 25 ������������������

Net assets without donor restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds

Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund

Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~

~~~~

Total net assets or fund balances ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances ����������������

Form (2024)

11
Balance SheetPart X

990

 

 

 

247,941. 111,327.

127,058. 127,997.

8,616,285. 8,587,979.

44. 44.
10,415,182. 10,959,945.

1,423,854. 2,132,598.

5,750. 0.

134,541. 195,246.

74,830. 13,321.
215,121. 208,567.

X

3,141,383. 3,377,256.
0. 0.

7,058,678. 7,374,122.
10,200,061. 10,751,378.
10,415,182. 10,959,945.

23-7336585FOUNDATION, INC.
ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE

11
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1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

Yes No

1

2

3

a

b

c

2a

2b

2c

a

b

3a

3b

 

Form 990 (2024) Page 

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XI ����������������������������

Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12)

Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25)

Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from line 1

Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 32, column (A))

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~

Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments

Donated services and use of facilities

Investment expenses

Prior period adjustments

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain on Schedule O)

Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line 32,

column (B))

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

������������������������������������������������

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XII ���������������������������

Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: Cash Accrual Other

If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked "Other," explain on Schedule O.

Were the organization's financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? ~~~~~~~~~~~~

If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or reviewed on a

separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:

Separate basis Consolidated basis Both consolidated and separate basis

Were the organization's financial statements audited by an independent accountant? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a separate basis,

consolidated basis, or both:

Separate basis Consolidated basis Both consolidated and separate basis

If "Yes" to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of the audit,

review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain on Schedule O.

As a result of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the

Uniform Guidance, 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart F? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

If "Yes," did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the required audit

or audits, explain why on Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits ����������������

Form (2024)

12
Part XI Reconciliation of Net Assets

Part XII Financial Statements and Reporting

990

 

 

     

     

     X

FOUNDATION, INC. 23-7336585
ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE

X

984,428.
786,234.
198,194.

10,200,061.

-15,000.

10,751,378.

368,123.

X

X

X

X

X

12
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(iv) Is the organization listed
in your governing document?

OMB No. 1545-0047

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

432021  01-14-25

(i) (iii) (v) (vi)(ii) Name of supported

organization

Type of organization 
(described on lines 1-10 
above (see instructions))

Amount of monetary

support (see instructions)

Amount of other

support (see instructions)

EIN    

(Form 990)
Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section

4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust.
Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. 

Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

Open to Public
Inspection

Name of the organization Employer identification number

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

section 170(b)(1)(A)(i).

section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii).

section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii).

section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii).

section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). 

section 170(b)(1)(A)(v).

section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi).

section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi).

section 170(b)(1)(A)(ix)

 section 509(a)(2).

section 509(a)(4).

section 509(a)(1) section 509(a)(2) section 509(a)(3).

a

b

c

d

e

f

Type I.

You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B.

Type II.

You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C.

Type III functionally integrated.

You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.

Type III non-functionally integrated.

You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.

g

Yes No

Total

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule A (Form 990) 2024

(All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.

The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.)

A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in 

A school described in  (Attach Schedule E (Form 990).)

A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in 

A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in  Enter the hospital's name,

city, and state:

An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in

 (Complete Part II.)

A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in 

An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public described in 

 (Complete Part II.)

A community trust described in  (Complete Part II.)

An agricultural research organization described in  operated in conjunction with a land-grant college

or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or

university:

An organization that normally receives (1) more than 33 1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross receipts from 

activities related to its exempt functions, subject to certain exceptions; and (2) no more than 33 1/3% of its support from gross investment 

income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975. 

See  (Complete Part III.)

An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See 

An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of one or 

more publicly supported organizations described in  or . See  Check the box on

lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g.

 A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving

the supported organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the supporting

organization. 

 A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having

control or management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported

organization(s). 

 A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with,

its supported organization(s) (see instructions). 

 A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s)

that is not functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness

requirement (see instructions). 

Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type I, Type II, Type III

functionally integrated, or Type III non-functionally integrated supporting organization.

Enter the number of supported organizations ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).

LHA   

SCHEDULE A

Part I Reason for Public Charity Status. 

Public Charity Status and Public Support
2024

 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

X

ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE
23-7336585FOUNDATION, INC.



Subtract line 5 from line 4.

432022  01-14-25

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in)

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in)

2

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) 

1

2

3

4

5

Total.

6 Public support.

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) 

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

Total support. 

12

First 5 years. 

stop here

14

15

14

15

16

17

18

a

b

a

b

33 1/3% support test - 2024.  

stop here. 

33 1/3% support test - 2023.  

stop here. 

10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2024.  

stop here. 

10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2023.  

stop here. 

Private foundation. 

Schedule A (Form 990) 2024

Add lines 7 through 10

Schedule A (Form 990) 2024 Page 

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part I or if the organization failed to qualify under Part III. If the organization

fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part III.)

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 Total

Gifts, grants, contributions, and

membership fees received. (Do not

include any "unusual grants.") ~~

Tax revenues levied for the organ-

ization's benefit and either paid to 

or expended on its behalf ~~~~

The value of services or facilities

furnished by a governmental unit to 

the organization without charge ~

 Add lines 1 through 3 ~~~

The portion of total contributions

by each person (other than a

governmental unit or publicly

supported organization) included

on line 1 that exceeds 2% of the

amount shown on line 11,

column (f) ~~~~~~~~~~~~

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 Total

Amounts from line 4 ~~~~~~~

Gross income from interest, 

dividends, payments received on 

securities loans, rents, royalties, 

and income from similar sources ~

Net income from unrelated business

activities, whether or not the

business is regularly carried on ~

Other income. Do not include gain

or loss from the sale of capital

assets (Explain in Part VI.) ~~~~

Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see instructions) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)

organization, check this box and �����������������������������������������������

~~~~~~~~~~~Public support percentage for 2024 (line 6, column (f), divided by line 11, column (f))

Public support percentage from 2023 Schedule A, Part II, line 14

%

%~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box and

The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and line 15 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box

and The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is 10% or more,

and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and Explain in Part VI how the organization

meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line 15 is 10% or

more, and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and Explain in Part VI how the

organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ~~~~~~~~~~~

If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see instructions �����

Part II Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi)

Section A. Public Support

Section B. Total Support

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
 

 

 

 

 
 

633,911.

633,911.

630,109.

630,109.

1142334. 643,902. 619,939. 3670195.

1142334. 643,902. 619,939. 3670195.

42,378.
3627817.

633,911. 630,109. 1142334. 643,902. 619,939. 3670195.

193,339. 132,697. 162,737. 246,146. 272,028. 1006947.

63,393. 63,393.
4740535.

76.53
77.33

X

FOUNDATION, INC. 23-7336585
ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE
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(Subtract line 7c from line 6.)

Amounts included on lines 2 and 3 received

from other than disqualified persons that

exceed the greater of $5,000 or 1% of the

amount on line 13 for the year

(Add lines 9, 10c, 11, and 12.)

432023  01-14-25

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in)

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in)

Total support. 

3

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

Total.

a

b

c

8 Public support. 

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) 

9

10a

b

c
11

12

13

14 First 5 years. 

stop here

15

16

15

16

17

18

19

20

2024 

2023

17

18

a

b

33 1/3% support tests - 2024.  

stop here.

33 1/3% support tests - 2023.  

stop here.

Private foundation. 

Schedule A (Form 990) 2024

Unrelated business taxable income

(less section 511 taxes) from businesses

acquired after June 30, 1975

Schedule A (Form 990) 2024 Page 

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part I or if the organization failed to qualify under Part II. If the organization fails to

qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part II.) 

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 Total

Gifts, grants, contributions, and

membership fees received. (Do not 

include any "unusual grants.") ~~

Gross receipts from admissions,
merchandise sold or services per-
formed, or facilities furnished in
any activity that is related to the
organization's tax-exempt purpose

Gross receipts from activities that

are not an unrelated trade or bus-

iness under section 513 ~~~~~

Tax revenues levied for the organ-

ization's benefit and either paid to 

or expended on its behalf ~~~~

The value of services or facilities

furnished by a governmental unit to

the organization without charge ~

~~~ Add lines 1 through 5

Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and

3 received from disqualified persons

~~~~~~

Add lines 7a and 7b ~~~~~~~

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 Total

Amounts from line 6 ~~~~~~~

Gross income from interest, 
dividends, payments received on 
securities loans, rents, royalties, 
and income from similar sources ~

~~~~

Add lines 10a and 10b ~~~~~~
Net income from unrelated business
activities not included on line 10b, 
whether or not the business is 
regularly carried on ~~~~~~~
Other income. Do not include gain
or loss from the sale of capital
assets (Explain in Part VI.) ~~~~

If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3) organization,

check this box and ������������������������������������������������������

Public support percentage for 2024 (line 8, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f))

Public support percentage from 2023 Schedule A, Part III, line 15

~~~~~~~~~~~ %

%��������������������

Investment income percentage for (line 10c, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f))

Investment income percentage from  Schedule A, Part III, line 17

~~~~~~~~ %

%~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 33 1/3%, and line 17 is not

more than 33 1/3%, check this box and  The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ~~~~~~~~~~~~

If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 33 1/3%, and

line 18 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and  The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ~~~~~~

If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions ����������

Part III Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2) 

Section A. Public Support

Section B. Total Support

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage

Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
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432024  01-14-25

4

Yes No

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

 Part VI 

1

2

3a

3b

3c

4a

4b

4c

5a

5b

5c

6

7

8

9a

9b

9c

10a

10b

 Part VI

a

b

c

a

b

c

a

b

c

a

b

c

a

b

Part VI 

 Part VI

 Part VI

 Part VI

 Part VI,

Type I or Type II only.

Substitutions only. 

Part VI.

Part VI.

Part VI.

Part VI.

Schedule A (Form 990) 2024

If "No," describe in how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by

class or purpose, describe the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain.

If "Yes," explain in  how the organization determined that the supported

organization was described in section 509(a)(1) or (2).

If "Yes," answer

lines 3b and 3c below.

If "Yes," describe in when and how the

organization made the determination.

If "Yes," explain in  what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use.

If

"Yes," and if you checked box 12a or 12b in Part I, answer lines 4b and 4c below.

If "Yes," describe in  how the organization had such control and discretion

despite being controlled or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations.

 If "Yes," explain in  what controls the organization used

to ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)

purposes.

If "Yes,"

answer lines 5b and 5c below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in including (i) the names and EIN

numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, or removed; (ii) the reasons for each such action;

(iii) the authority under the organization's organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action

was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document).

If "Yes," provide detail in

If "Yes," complete Part I of Schedule L (Form 990).

If "Yes," complete Part I of Schedule L (Form 990).

If "Yes," provide detail in

 If "Yes," provide detail in

If "Yes," provide detail in

 If "Yes," answer line 10b below.

(Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to

determine whether the organization had excess business holdings.)

Schedule A (Form 990) 2024 Page 

(Complete only if you checked a box on line 12 of Part I. If you checked box 12a, Part I, complete Sections A

and B. If you checked box 12b, Part I, complete Sections A and C. If you checked box 12c, Part I, complete

Sections A, D, and E. If you checked box 12d, Part I, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.)

Are all of the organization's supported organizations listed by name in the organization's governing

documents? 

Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status

under section 509(a)(1) or (2)? 

Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6)? 

Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) and

satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? 

Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)

purposes? 

Was any supported organization not organized in the United States ("foreign supported organization")? 

Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign

supported organization? 

Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination

under sections 501(c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or (2)?

Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? 

 Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already

designated in the organization's organizing document?

Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization's control?

Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to

anyone other than (i) its supported organizations, (ii) individuals that are part of the charitable class

benefited by one or more of its supported organizations, or (iii) other supporting organizations that also

support or benefit one or more of the filing organization's supported organizations? 

Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor

(as defined in section 4958(c)(3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity with

regard to a substantial contributor? 

Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described on line 7?

Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more

disqualified persons, as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations described

in section 509(a)(1) or (2))? 

Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined on line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which

the supporting organization had an interest?

Did a disqualified person (as defined on line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit

from, assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? 

Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section

4943(f) (regarding certain Type II supporting organizations, and all Type III non-functionally integrated

supporting organizations)?

Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? 

 

 

 

 

Part IV Supporting Organizations

Section A. All Supporting Organizations
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5

Yes No

11

a

b

c

11a

11b

11cPart VI.

Yes No

1

2

 Part VI

1

2

Part VI

Yes No

1

 Part VI 

1

Yes No

1

2

3

1

2

3

 Part VI

Part VI

1

2

3

(see instructions).

a

b

c

line 2 

 line 3 

 Part VI 

Answer lines 2a and 2b below. Yes No

a

b

a

b

Part VI identify

those supported organizations and explain

2a

2b

3a

3b

Part VI

 Answer lines 3a and 3b below.

Part VI

Part VI 

Schedule A (Form 990) 2024

If "Yes" to line 11a, 11b, or 11c,

provide detail in

If "No," describe in  how the supported organization(s)
effectively operated, supervised, or controlled the organization's activities. If the organization had more than one supported
organization, describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove officers, directors, or trustees were allocated among the
supported organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, applied to such powers during the tax year.

If "Yes," explain in

 how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated,

supervised, or controlled the supporting organization.

If "No," describe in how control

or management of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed

the supported organization(s).

 If "No," explain in  how

the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s).

If "Yes," describe in  the role the organization's

supported organizations played in this regard.

Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year

Complete below.

Complete below.

Describe in how you supported a governmental 

entity (see instructions).

Did substantially all of the organization's activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of

the supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? If "Yes," then in

 how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes,

how the organization was responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined

that these activities constituted substantially all of its activities.

 If "Yes," explain in

 the reasons for the organization's position that its supported organization(s) would have engaged in

these activities but for the organization's involvement.

A 35% controlled entity of a person described on line 11a or 11b above? 

Schedule A (Form 990) 2024 Page 

Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons?

A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described on lines 11b and

11c below, the governing body of a supported organization?

A family member of a person described on line 11a above?

Did the governing body, members of the governing body, officers acting in their official capacity, or membership of one or
more supported organizations have the power to regularly appoint or elect at least a majority of the organization's officers,
directors, or trustees at all times during the tax year? 

Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported

organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? 

Were a majority of the organization's directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors

or trustees of each of the organization's supported organization(s)? 

Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the

organization's tax year, (i) a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax

year, (ii) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (iii) copies of the

organization's governing documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided?

Were any of the organization's officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported

organization(s) or (ii) serving on the governing body of a supported organization?

By reason of the relationship described on line 2, above, did the organization's supported organizations have a

significant voice in the organization's investment policies and in directing the use of the organization's

income or assets at all times during the tax year? 

The organization satisfied the Activities Test. 

The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. 

The organization supported a governmental entity. 

Activities Test.

Did the activities described on line 2a, above, constitute activities that, but for the organization's involvement,

one or more of the organization's supported organization(s) would have been engaged in?

Parent of Supported Organizations.

Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or

trustees of each of the supported organizations? If "Yes" or "No," provide details in .

Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each

of its supported organizations? If "Yes," describe in the role played by the organization in this regard.

 

 

 

 

 

 

(continued)Part IV Supporting Organizations 

Section B. Type I Supporting Organizations

Section C. Type II Supporting Organizations

Section D. All Type III Supporting Organizations

Section E. Type III Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations
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6

1 Part VI See instructions.

Section A - Adjusted Net Income

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8Adjusted Net Income

Section B - Minimum Asset Amount

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

a

b

c

d

e

1a

1b

1c

1d

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

Total 

Discount

Part VI

Minimum Asset Amount 

Section C - Distributable Amount

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

1

2

3

4

5

6

Distributable Amount.

Schedule A (Form 990) 2024

explain in 

explain in detail in

Schedule A (Form 990) 2024 Page 

Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 ( ). 

All other Type III non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E.

(B) Current Year
(optional)(A) Prior Year

Net short-term capital gain

Recoveries of prior-year distributions

Other gross income (see instructions)

Add lines 1 through 3.

Depreciation and depletion

Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or

collection of gross income or for management, conservation, or

maintenance of property held for production of income (see instructions)

Other expenses (see instructions)

 (subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4)

(B) Current Year
(optional)(A) Prior Year

Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see

instructions for short tax year or assets held for part of year):

Average monthly value of securities

Average monthly cash balances

Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets

(add lines 1a, 1b, and 1c)

 claimed for blockage or other factors

(   ):

Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets

Subtract line 2 from line 1d.

Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 0.015 of line 3 (for greater amount,

see instructions).

Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 from line 3)

Multiply line 5 by 0.035.

Recoveries of prior-year distributions

(add line 7 to line 6)

Current Year

Adjusted net income for prior year (from Section A, line 8, column A)

Enter 0.85 of line 1.

Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, line 8, column A)

Enter greater of line 2 or line 3.

Income tax imposed in prior year

 Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to

emergency temporary reduction (see instructions).

Check here if the current year is the organization's first as a non-functionally integrated Type III supporting organization (see

instructions).

Part V Type III Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations 

 

 

FOUNDATION, INC. 23-7336585
ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE

18
 12371121 781931 18607                 2024.05000 ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COL 18607__1                                                               



432027  01-14-25

7

Section D - Distributions Current Year

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

Part VI

 Part VI

Total annual distributions.

Part VI

(i)

Excess Distributions

(ii)
Underdistributions

Pre-2024

(iii)
Distributable

Amount for 2024
Section E - Distribution Allocations 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

 Part VI

a

b

c

d

e

f

g

h

i

j

Total 

a

b

c

 Part VI.

Part VI

Excess distributions carryover to 2025. 

a

b

c

d

e

Schedule A (Form 990) 2024

provide details in

provide details in

explain in

explain in

explain in

Schedule A (Form 990) 2024 Page 

Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes

Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported

organizations, in excess of income from activity

Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations

Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets

Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval required - )

Other distributions (describe in ). See instructions.

 Add lines 1 through 6.

Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive

( ). See instructions.

Distributable amount for 2024 from Section C, line 6

Line 8 amount divided by line 9 amount

(see instructions)

Distributable amount for 2024 from Section C, line 6

Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2024 (reason-

able cause required - ). See instructions.

Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2024

From 2019

From 2020

From 2021

From 2022

From 2023

of lines 3a through 3e

Applied to under distributions of prior years

Applied to 2024 distributable amount

Carryover from 2019 not applied (see instructions)

Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from line 3f.

Distributions for 2024 from Section D,

line 7: $

Applied to underdistributions of prior years

Applied to 2024 distributable amount

Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from line 4.

Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2024, if

any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result greater

than zero,  See instructions.

Remaining underdistributions for 2024. Subtract lines 3h

and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, 

. See instructions.

Add lines 3j

and 4c.

Breakdown of line 7:

Excess from 2020

Excess from 2021

Excess from 2022

Excess from 2023

Excess from 2024
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8

Schedule A (Form 990) 2024

Schedule A (Form 990) 2024 Page 

Provide the explanations required by Part II, line 10; Part II, line 17a or 17b; Part III, line 12;
Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3c, 4b, 4c, 5a, 6, 9a, 9b, 9c, 11a, 11b, and 11c; Part IV, Section B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C,
line 1; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1c, 2a, 2b, 3a and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1e; Part V,
Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E, lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information.
(See instructions.)

Part VI Supplemental Information. 

FUNDRAISING
2024 AMOUNT: $   63,393.

FOUNDATION, INC.

SCHEDULE A, PART II, LINE 10, EXPLANATION FOR OTHER INCOME:

23-7336585
ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE

20
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Contributor's Name Total
Contributions

Excess
Contributions

Total Excess Contributions to Schedule A, Part II, Line 5 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

**  Do Not File  **
***  Not Open to Public Inspection  ***

Identification of Excess Contributions
Included on Part II, Line 5Schedule A 2024

CARL CLEMENT BECK, JR. LIVING TRUST 100,000. 5,189.

DR. HOWARD & NANCY RAMSEY 132,000. 37,189.

42,378.

FOUNDATION, INC. 23-7336585
ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE
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Internal Revenue Service
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For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the instructions for Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF. Schedule B (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)

OMB No. 1545-0047
(Rev. December 2024) Attach to Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF.

Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information.

Employer identification number

Organization type

Filers of: Section:

 not

 General Rule  Special Rule.

Note: 

General Rule

Special Rules

(1) (2) 

General Rule 

Caution:  must

exclusively

exclusively

 exclusively

nonexclusively

Name of the organization

(check one):

Form 990 or 990-EZ 501(c)( ) (enter number) organization

4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust  treated as a private foundation

527 political organization

Form 990-PF 501(c)(3) exempt private foundation

4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust treated as a private foundation

501(c)(3) taxable private foundation

Check if your organization is covered by the  or a

Only a section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) organization can check boxes for both the General Rule and a Special Rule. See instructions.

For an organization filing Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF that received, during the year, contributions totaling $5,000 or more (in money or

property) from any one contributor. Complete Parts I and II. See instructions for determining a contributor's total contributions.

For an organization described in section 501(c)(3) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that met the 33 1/3% support test of the regulations under

sections 509(a)(1) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi), that checked Schedule A (Form 990), Part II, line 13, 16a, or 16b, and that received from any one

contributor, during the year, total contributions of the greater of $5,000; or 2% of the amount on (i) Form 990, Part VIII, line 1h;

or (ii) Form 990-EZ, line 1. Complete Parts I and II.

For an organization described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one

contributor, during the year, total contributions of more than $1,000  for religious, charitable, scientific,

literary, or educational purposes, or for the prevention of cruelty to children or animals. Complete Parts I (entering

"N/A" in column (b) instead of the contributor name and address), II, and III.

For an organization described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one contributor, during the

year, contributions  for religious, charitable, etc., purposes, but no such contributions totaled more than $1,000. If this box

is checked, enter here the total contributions that were received during the year for an  religious, charitable, etc.,

purpose. Don't complete any of the parts unless the applies to this organization because it received 

religious, charitable, etc., contributions totaling $5,000 or more during the year ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ $

An organization that isn't covered by the General Rule and/or the Special Rules doesn't file Schedule B (Form 990), but it

answer "No" on Part IV, line 2, of its Form 990; or check the box on line H of its Form 990-EZ or on its Form 990-PF, Part I, line 2, to certify

that it doesn't meet the filing requirements of Schedule B (Form 990).

LHA

Schedule B
(Form 990)

Schedule of Contributors

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FOUNDATION, INC. 23-7336585

X  3

X

ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE



423452  01-09-25 Schedule B (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)

Employer identification number

(a)

No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

Total contributions

(d)

Type of contribution

Person

Payroll

Noncash

(a)

No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

Total contributions

(d)

Type of contribution

Person

Payroll

Noncash

(a)

No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

Total contributions

(d)

Type of contribution

Person

Payroll

Noncash

(a)

No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

Total contributions

(d)

Type of contribution

Person

Payroll

Noncash

(a)

No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

Total contributions

(d)

Type of contribution

Person

Payroll

Noncash

(a)

No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

Total contributions

(d)

Type of contribution

Person

Payroll

Noncash

Schedule B (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024) Page 

Name of organization

(see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part I if additional space is needed.

$

(Complete Part II for
noncash contributions.)

$

(Complete Part II for
noncash contributions.)

$

(Complete Part II for
noncash contributions.)

$

(Complete Part II for
noncash contributions.)

$

(Complete Part II for
noncash contributions.)

$

(Complete Part II for
noncash contributions.)

2

Part I Contributors

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

1 X

28,424.

FLORIDA
THE COMMUNITY FOUNDATION OF NORTHEAST

245 RIVERSIDE AVE., SUITE 310

JACKSONVILLE, FL 32202

2 X

26,538.

FLORIDA COLLEGE SYSTEM FOUNDATION

PO BOX 10503

TALLAHASSEE, FL 32302

3 X

16,000.

HCA FLORIDA PUTNAM HOSPITAL

611 ZEAGLER DRIVE

PALATKA, FL 32177-3810

4 X

25,000.

THOMAS HUNTER

144 RATLIFF TRAIL

INTERLACHEN, FL 32148

5 X

25,500.

SCHOLARSHIP AMERICA

ONE SCHOLARSHIP WAY

SAINT PETER, MN 56082

6 X

73,096.

ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE

5001 ST. JOHNS AVENUE

PALATKA, FL 32177

ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE
FOUNDATION, INC. 23-7336585
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423452  01-09-25 Schedule B (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)

Employer identification number

(a)

No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

Total contributions

(d)

Type of contribution

Person

Payroll

Noncash

(a)

No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

Total contributions

(d)

Type of contribution

Person

Payroll

Noncash

(a)

No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

Total contributions

(d)

Type of contribution

Person

Payroll

Noncash

(a)

No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

Total contributions

(d)

Type of contribution

Person

Payroll

Noncash

(a)

No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

Total contributions

(d)

Type of contribution

Person

Payroll

Noncash

(a)

No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

Total contributions

(d)

Type of contribution

Person

Payroll

Noncash

Schedule B (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024) Page 

Name of organization

(see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part I if additional space is needed.

$

(Complete Part II for
noncash contributions.)

$

(Complete Part II for
noncash contributions.)

$

(Complete Part II for
noncash contributions.)

$

(Complete Part II for
noncash contributions.)

$

(Complete Part II for
noncash contributions.)

$

(Complete Part II for
noncash contributions.)

2

Part I Contributors

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

7 X

19,674.

WOMANS EXCHANGE OF ST. AUGUSTINE INC.

PO BOX 496

ST. AUGUSTINE, FL 32085

8 X

15,000.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

PUTNAM COUNTY PO BOX 758

PALATKA, FL 32178

9

X15,000.

MARK A SPATOLA

616 PINTAIL DR

AIKEN, SC 29803-6776

ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE
FOUNDATION, INC. 23-7336585
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423453  01-09-25 Schedule B (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)

Employer identification number

(a)

No.

from

Part I

(c)

FMV (or estimate)
(b)

Description of noncash property given

(d)

Date received

(a)

No.

from

Part I

(c)

FMV (or estimate)
(b)

Description of noncash property given

(d)

Date received

(a)

No.

from

Part I

(c)

FMV (or estimate)
(b)

Description of noncash property given

(d)

Date received

(a)

No.

from

Part I

(c)

FMV (or estimate)
(b)

Description of noncash property given

(d)

Date received

(a)

No.

from

Part I

(c)

FMV (or estimate)
(b)

Description of noncash property given

(d)

Date received

(a)

No.

from

Part I

(c)

FMV (or estimate)
(b)

Description of noncash property given

(d)

Date received

Schedule B (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024) Page 

Name of organization

(see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part II if additional space is needed.

(See instructions.)

$

(See instructions.)

$

(See instructions.)

$

(See instructions.)

$

(See instructions.)

$

(See instructions.)

$

3

Part II Noncash Property

9

06/21/2415,000.

BRODMANN GRAND PIANO

ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE
FOUNDATION, INC. 23-7336585
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completing Part III, enter the total of exclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions of  for the year. (Enter this info. once.)

423454  01-09-25

Exclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions to organizations described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) that total more than $1,000 for the year
from any one contributor. (a) (e) and

$1,000 or less

Schedule B (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)

 Complete columns  through  the following line entry. For organizations

Employer identification number

(a) No.
from
Part I

(b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held

(e) Transfer of gift

Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee

(a) No.
from
Part I

(b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held

(e) Transfer of gift

Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee

(a) No.
from
Part I

(b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held

(e) Transfer of gift

Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee

(a) No.
from
Part I

(b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held

(e) Transfer of gift

Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee

 

Schedule B (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024) Page 

Name of organization

$

Use duplicate copies of Part III if additional space is needed.

4

Part III

ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE
FOUNDATION, INC. 23-7336585
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Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

432051  01-02-25

OMB No. 1545-0047

(Rev. December 2024)

Held at the End of the Tax Year

(Form 990)  Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990,
Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b.

Attach to Form 990.
Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

Open to Public
Inspection

Name of the organization Employer identification number

(a) (b) 

1

2

3

4

5

6

Yes No

Yes No

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

a

b

c

d

2a

2b

2c

2d

Yes No

Yes No

1

2

a

b

(i)

(ii)

a

b

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)

Complete if the
organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 6.

Donor advised funds Funds and other accounts

Total number at end of year

Aggregate value of contributions to (during year)

Aggregate value of grants from (during year)

Aggregate value at end of year

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~

~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised funds

are the organization's property, subject to the organization's exclusive legal control? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used only

for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose conferring

impermissible private benefit? ��������������������������������������������

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 7.

Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply).

Preservation of land for public use (for example, recreation or education)

Protection of natural habitat

Preservation of open space

Preservation of a historically important land area

Preservation of a certified historic structure

Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation easement on the last
day of the tax year.

Total number of conservation easements

Total acreage restricted by conservation easements

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included on line 2a

Number of conservation easements included on line 2c acquired after July 25, 2006, and not

on a historic structure listed in the National Register

~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the tax

year

Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located 

Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of

violations, and enforcement of the conservation easements it holds? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year 

Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year 

Does each conservation easement reported on line 2d above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4)(B)(i)

and section 170(h)(4)(B)(ii)? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

In Part XIII, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement and

balance sheet, and include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that describes the

organization's accounting for conservation easements.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 8.

If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works

of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public

service, provide in Part XIII the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of

art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service,

provide the following amounts relating to these items.

Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1

Assets included in Form 990, Part X

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ $

$~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide

the following amounts required to be reported under FASB ASC 958 relating to these items:

Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1

Assets included in Form 990, Part X

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ $

$�������������������������������������

LHA

Part I Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts. 

Part II Conservation Easements. 

Part III Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.

SCHEDULE D Supplemental Financial Statements

   

   

   
   
 

   

   

ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE
FOUNDATION, INC. 23-7336585
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432052  01-02-25

3

4

5

a

b

c

d

e

Yes No

1

2

a

b

c

d

e

f

a

b

Yes No

1c

1d

1e

1f

Yes No

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) 

1

2

3

4

a

b

c

d

e

f

g

a

b

c

a

b

Yes No

(i)

(ii)

3a(i)

3a(ii)

3b

(a) (b) (c) (d) 

1a

b

c

d

e

Total. 

Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)

(continued)

(Column (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 10c,  column (B))

Two years back Three years back Four years back

Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024) Page 

Using the organization's acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that make significant use of its

collection items (check all that apply).

Public exhibition

Scholarly research

Preservation for future generations

Loan or exchange program

Other

Provide a description of the organization's collections and explain how they further the organization's exempt purpose in Part XIII.

During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets

to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization's collection? ������������

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 9, or
reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21.

Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian, or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not included

on Form 990, Part X?

If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XIII and complete the following table:

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Amount

Beginning balance

Additions during the year

Distributions during the year

Ending balance

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability?

If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XIII. Check here if the explanation has been provided in Part XIII

~~~~~

�������������

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 10.

Current year Prior year

Beginning of year balance

Contributions

Net investment earnings, gains, and losses

Grants or scholarships

~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~

Other expenditures for facilities

and programs

Administrative expenses

End of year balance

~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~

Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as:

Board designated or quasi-endowment

Permanent endowment

Term endowment

The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2c should equal 100%.

%

%

%

Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the

organization by:

Unrelated organizations?

Related organizations?

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

If "Yes" on line 3a(ii), are the related organizations listed as required on Schedule R?

Describe in Part XIII the intended uses of the organization's endowment funds.

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.

Description of property Cost or other
basis (investment)

Cost or other
basis (other)

Accumulated
depreciation

Book value

Land

Buildings

Leasehold improvements

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~

Equipment

Other

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

��������������������

Add lines 1a through 1e. ���������������

2
Part III Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets 

Part IV Escrow and Custodial Arrangements 

Part V Endowment Funds 

Part VI Land, Buildings, and Equipment

   
   
 

   

   

   
 

7,058,678.
605,140.
438,882.
406,291.

176,844.

7,374,122.

47.0000
53.0000

X
X

145,443.

0.

FOUNDATION, INC. 23-7336585
ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE

6,094,012.
630,325.
955,696.
381,800.

106,439.
133,116.

7,058,678.

689,474.
6,199,807.

-223,545.
387,473.

153,338.
30,913.

6,094,012.

5,678,196.
599,491.
414,000.
380,449.

40,744.
70,687.

6,199,807.

4,492,810.
617,147.

1,093,464.
344,407.

144,443.
36,375.

5,678,196.
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(including name of security)

432053  01-02-25

Total. 

Total. 

(a) (b) (c) 

(1)

(2)

(3)

(a) (b) (c) 

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(a) (b) 

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

Total. 

(a) (b) 1.

Total. 

2.

Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)

(Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 15, col. (B))

(Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 25, col. (B))

Description of security or category 

(Col. (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 12, col. (B))

(Col. (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 13, col. (B))

Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024) Page 

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.

Book value Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value

Financial derivatives

Closely held equity interests

Other

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~

(A)

(B)

(C)

(D)

(E)

(F)

(G)

(H)

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11c. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.

Description of investment Book value Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.

Description Book value

�����������������������������

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See Form 990, Part X, line 25.

Description of liability Book value

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

Federal income taxes

�����������������������������

Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part XIII, provide the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that reports the

organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FASB ASC 740. Check here if the text of the footnote has been provided in Part XIII �

3
Part VII Investments - Other Securities

Part VIII Investments - Program Related.

Part IX Other Assets

Part X Other Liabilities

 

FOUNDATION, INC.

ANNUITY OBLIGATION

23-7336585

13,321.

13,321.

ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE
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432054  01-02-25

1

2

3

4

5

1

a

b

c

d

e

2a

2b

2c

2d

2e

3

a

b

c

4a

4b

3 4c. 

4c

5

1

2

3

4

5

1

a

b

c

d

e

2a

2b

2c

2d

2e

3

a

b

c

4a

4b

3 4c. 

4c

5

Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)

(This must equal Form 990, Part I, line 12.)

(This must equal Form 990, Part I, line 18.)

Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024) Page 

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements

Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12:

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments

Donated services and use of facilities

Recoveries of prior year grants

Other (Describe in Part XIII.)

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Add lines 2a through 2d ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Subtract line 2e from line 1 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, but not on line 1:

Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b

Other (Describe in Part XIII.)

~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Add lines 4a and 4b

Total revenue. Add lines and 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

������������������

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements

Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25:

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Donated services and use of facilities

Prior year adjustments

Other losses

Other (Describe in Part XIII.)

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Add lines 2a through 2d

Subtract line 2e from line 1

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1:

Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b

Other (Describe in Part XIII.)

~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Add lines 4a and 4b

Total expenses. Add lines and 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

�����������������

Provide the descriptions required for Part II, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part III, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line 2; Part XI,

lines 2d and 4b; and Part XII, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

4
Part XI Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return

Part XII Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return

Part XIII Supplemental Information

SCHOLARSHIPS

PART XI, LINE 4B - OTHER ADJUSTMENTS:
NONCASH CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVED                                      15,000.
FUNDRAISING EXPENSES                                               -48,347.
TOTAL TO SCHEDULE D, PART XI, LINE 4B                              -33,347.

1,385,898.

368,123.

368,123.
1,017,775.

-33,347.
-33,347.
984,428.

834,581.

48,347.
48,347.

786,234.

0.
786,234.

PART V, LINE 4: 

FOUNDATION, INC. 23-7336585
ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE

PART XII, LINE 2D - OTHER ADJUSTMENTS:
FUNDRAISING EXPENSES                                                48,347.
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5

Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)

(continued)
Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024) Page 

Part XIII Supplemental Information 

FOUNDATION, INC. 23-7336585
ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE
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Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Did
fundraiser

have custody
or control of

contributions?

432081  01-14-25

Go to

OMB No. 1545-0047

(Rev. December 2024)

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 17, 18, or 19, or if the
organization entered more than $15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6a.

Open to Public
Inspection

Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.

www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

Employer identification number

1

a

b

c

d

a

b

e

f

g

2

Yes No

(i) 
(ii) 

(iii) 
(iv) 

(v) 

(i)

(vi) 

Yes No

Total

3

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule G (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)

Name of the organization

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 17. Form 990-EZ filers are not
required to complete this part.

Indicate whether the organization raised funds through any of the following activities. Check all that apply.

Mail solicitations

Internet and email solicitations

Phone solicitations

In-person solicitations

Solicitation of nongovernment grants

Solicitation of government grants

Special fundraising events

Did the organization have a written or oral agreement with any individual (including officers, directors, trustees, or

key employees listed in Form 990, Part VII) or entity in connection with professional fundraising services?

If "Yes," list the 10 highest paid individuals or entities (fundraisers) pursuant to agreements under which the fundraiser is to be

compensated at least $5,000 by the organization.

Name and address of individual
or entity (fundraiser)

Activity
Gross receipts

from activity

Amount paid
to (or retained by)

fundraiser
listed in col. 

Amount paid
to (or retained by)

organization

����������������������������������������

List all states in which the organization is registered or licensed to solicit contributions or has been notified it is exempt from registration
or licensing.

LHA

 

Supplemental Information Regarding Fundraising or Gaming ActivitiesSCHEDULE G
(Form 990)

Part I Fundraising Activities. 

   
   
   
 

   

ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE
23-7336585FOUNDATION, INC.
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432082  01-14-25

2

(d) 

(a) 

(c)

(a) (b) (c) 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

(a) 
(b) 

(c) 
(d) 

(a) (c)

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

Yes Yes Yes

No No No

9

10

a

b

Yes No

a

b

Yes No

Schedule G (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)

Pull tabs/instant
bingo/progressive bingo

Schedule G (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024) Page 

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 18, or reported more than $15,000

of fundraising event contributions and gross income on Form 990-EZ, lines 1 and 6b. List events with gross receipts greater than $5,000.

Total events

(add col. through

col. )

R
e
ve

n
u

e

Event #1 Event #2 Other events

(event type) (event type) (total number)

Gross receipts

Less: Contributions

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~

Gross income (line 1 minus line 2)

D
ir
e
c
t 

E
xp

e
n

se
s

����

Cash prizes

Noncash prizes

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Rent/facility costs ~~~~~~~~~~~~

Food and beverages

Entertainment

~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Other direct expenses ~~~~~~~~~~

Direct expense summary. Add lines 4 through 9 in column (d)

Net income summary. Subtract line 10 from line 3, column (d)

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

��������������������������

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 19, or reported more than

$15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6a.

R
e
ve

n
u

e Bingo Other gaming
Total gaming (add

col. through col. )

D
ir
e
c
t 

E
xp

e
n

se
s

Gross revenue ��������������

Cash prizes

Noncash prizes

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Rent/facility costs

Other direct expenses

~~~~~~~~~~~~

����������

% % %

Volunteer labor ~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Direct expense summary. Add lines 2 through 5 in column (d)

Net gaming income summary. Subtract line 7 from line 1, column (d)

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

�����������������������

Enter the state(s) in which the organization conducts gaming activities:

Is the organization licensed to conduct gaming activities in each of these states?

If "No," explain:

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Were any of the organization's gaming licenses revoked, suspended, or terminated during the tax year?

If "Yes," explain:

~~~~~~~~~

Part II Fundraising Events.

Part III Gaming.

     
     

   

   

24,320.

4,370.

19,950.

1,100.

600.

600.

2,558.

60,827.

23,327.

37,500.

167.

24,066.

5,943.

5,943.

88.

91,090.

27,697.

63,393.

1,100.

767.

600.

26,712.

48,347.
15,046.

GOLF CLASSICGALA
PRESIDENT

1

FOUNDATION, INC. 23-7336585
ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE

6,347. 7,597. 5,224. 19,168.
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3

11

12

13

14

15

Yes No

Yes No

a

b

13a

13b

Yes Noa

b

c

16

17

a

b

Yes No

 

Schedule G (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)

Schedule G (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024) Page 

Does the organization conduct gaming activities with nonmembers?

Is the organization a grantor, beneficiary or trustee of a trust, or a member of a partnership or other entity formed

to administer charitable gaming?

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Indicate the percentage of gaming activity conducted in:

The organization's facility

An outside facility

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ %

%~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Enter the name and address of the person who prepares the organization's gaming/special events books and records:

Name

Address

Does the organization have a contract with a third party from whom the organization receives gaming revenue?

If "Yes," enter the amount of gaming revenue received by the organization

~~~~~~

$ and the amount

of gaming revenue retained by the third party $

If "Yes," enter the name and address of the third party:

Name

Address

Gaming manager information:

Name

Gaming manager compensation

Description of services provided

$

Director/officer Employee Independent contractor

Mandatory distributions:

Is the organization required under state law to make charitable distributions from the gaming proceeds to

retain the state gaming license? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Enter the amount of distributions required under state law to be distributed to other exempt organizations or spent in the

organization's own exempt activities during the tax year $

Provide the explanations required by Part I, line 2b, columns (iii) and (v); and Part III, lines 9, 9b, 10b,

15b, 15c, 16, and 17b, as applicable. Also provide any additional information. See instructions.

Part IV Supplemental Information.

   

   

   

     

   

FOUNDATION, INC. 23-7336585
ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE
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4

Schedule G (Form 990)

(continued)
Schedule G (Form 990) Page 
Part IV Supplemental Information 

FOUNDATION, INC. 23-7336585
ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE
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OMB No. 1545-0047

Department of the Treasury

Internal Revenue Service

432101  01-02-25

(Rev. December 2024)

SCHEDULE I
(Form 990)

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 21 or 22.

 Attach to Form 990.

 Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

Open to Public
Inspection

Employer identification number

Part I General Information on Grants and Assistance

1

2

Yes No

Part II Grants and Other Assistance to Domestic Organizations and Domestic Governments. 

(f) 1 (a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (g) (h) 

2

3

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule I (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)

Name of the organization

Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of the grants or assistance, the grantees' eligibility for the grants or assistance, and the selection 

criteria used to award the grants or assistance? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Describe in Part IV the organization's procedures for monitoring the use of grant funds in the United States.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 21, for any
recipient that received more than $5,000. Part II can be duplicated if additional space is needed.

Method of
valuation (book,
FMV, appraisal,

other)

Name and address of organization
or government

EIN IRC section
(if applicable)

Amount of
cash grant

Amount of
noncash

assistance

Description of
noncash assistance

Purpose of grant
or assistance

Enter total number of section 501(c)(3) and government organizations listed in the line 1 table

Enter total number of other organizations listed in the line 1 table

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

����������������������������������������������������

LHA

Grants and Other Assistance to Organizations,
Governments, and Individuals in the United States

ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE
FOUNDATION, INC.

X

23-7336585

36



432102  01-18-25

2

Grants and Other Assistance to Domestic Individuals. Part III

(e) (a) (b) (c) (d) (f) 

Part IV Supplemental Information. 

Schedule I (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)

Schedule I (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024) Page 

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 22.
Part III can be duplicated if additional space is needed.

Method of valuation
(book, FMV, appraisal, other)

Type of grant or assistance Number of
recipients

Amount of
cash grant

Amount of non-
cash assistance

Description of noncash assistance

Provide the information required in Part I, line 2; Part III, column (b); and any other additional information.

SCHOLARSHIPS 250 406,291. 0.

ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE
FOUNDATION, INC. 23-7336585

37



Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

432111  01-15-25

OMB No. 1545-0047

(Rev. December 2024)

For certain Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest
Compensated Employees

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 23. Open to Public
InspectionAttach to Form 990.

Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.
Employer identification number

Yes No

1a

b

1b

2

2

3

4

a

b

c

4a

4b

4c

Only section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations must complete lines 5-9.

5

5a

5b

6a

6b

7

8

9

a

b

6

a

b

7

8

9

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule J (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)

Name of the organization

Check the appropriate box(es) if the organization provided any of the following to or for a person listed on Form 990,

Part VII, Section A, line 1a. Complete Part III to provide any relevant information regarding these items.

First-class or charter travel

Travel for companions

Housing allowance or residence for personal use

Payments for business use of personal residence

Tax indemnification and gross-up payments

Discretionary spending account

Health or social club dues or initiation fees

Personal services (such as maid, chauffeur, chef)

If any of the boxes on line 1a are checked, did the organization follow a written policy regarding payment or

reimbursement or provision of all of the expenses described above? If "No," complete Part III to explain ~~~~~~~~~~~

Did the organization require substantiation prior to reimbursing or allowing expenses incurred by all directors,

trustees, and officers, including the CEO/Executive Director, regarding the items checked on line 1a? ~~~~~~~~~~~~

Indicate which, if any, of the following the organization used to establish the compensation of the organization's

CEO/Executive Director. Check all that apply. Do not check any boxes for methods used by a related organization to

establish compensation of the CEO/Executive Director, but explain in Part III.

Compensation committee

Independent compensation consultant

Form 990 of other organizations

Written employment contract

Compensation survey or study

Approval by the board or compensation committee

During the year, did any person listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, with respect to the filing

organization or a related organization:

Receive a severance payment or change-of-control payment?

Participate in or receive payment from a supplemental nonqualified retirement plan?

Participate in or receive payment from an equity-based compensation arrangement?

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

If "Yes" to any of lines 4a-c, list the persons and provide the applicable amounts for each item in Part III.

For persons listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any compensation

contingent on the revenues of:

The organization?

Any related organization?

If "Yes" on line 5a or 5b, describe in Part III.

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

For persons listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any compensation

contingent on the net earnings of:

The organization?

Any related organization?

If "Yes" on line 6a or 6b, describe in Part III.

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

For persons listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization provide any nonfixed payments

not described on lines 5 and 6? If "Yes," describe in Part III

Were any amounts reported on Form 990, Part VII, paid or accrued pursuant to a contract that was subject to the

initial contract exception described in Regulations section 53.4958-4(a)(3)? If "Yes," describe in Part III

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~

If "Yes" on line 8, did the organization also follow the rebuttable presumption procedure described in

Regulations section 53.4958-6(c)? ���������������������������������������������

LHA

SCHEDULE J
(Form 990)

Part I Questions Regarding Compensation

Compensation Information

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE
23-7336585

X
X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X

FOUNDATION, INC.
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432112  01-15-25

2

Part II Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees. 

Note: 

(B) (C)  (D)  (E)  (F) 

(A) (i) (ii) (iii) 

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(ii)

Schedule J (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)

Schedule J (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024) Page 

Use duplicate copies if additional space is needed.

For each individual whose compensation must be reported on Schedule J, report compensation from the organization on row (i) and from related organizations, described in the instructions, on row (ii).
Do not list any individuals that aren't listed on Form 990, Part VII.

The sum of columns (B)(i)-(iii) for each listed individual must equal the total amount of Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, applicable column (D) and (E) amounts for that individual.

Breakdown of W-2 and/or 1099-MISC and/or 1099-NEC
compensation

Retirement and
other deferred
compensation

Nontaxable
benefits

Total of columns
(B)(i)-(D)

Compensation
in column (B)

reported as deferred
on prior Form 990

Name and Title Base
compensation

Bonus &
incentive

compensation

Other
reportable

compensation

ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE
FOUNDATION, INC.

0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.
DIRECTOR 335,157. 0. 94,565. 134,661. 9,082. 573,465. 0.

0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.
VC THRU 12/24, DIRECTOR 213,375. 0. 19,877. 77,308. 7,607. 318,167. 0.

23-7336585

(1)  JOE H PICKENS JD

(2)  DR MELANIE BROWN

39
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3

Part III Supplemental Information

Schedule J (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)

Schedule J (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024) Page 

Provide the information, explanation, or descriptions required for Part I, lines 1a, 1b, 3, 4a, 4b, 4c, 5a, 5b, 6a, 6b, 7, and 8, and for Part II. Also complete this part for any additional information. 

ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE
23-7336585FOUNDATION, INC.

40



Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

432211  01-15-25

OMB No. 1545-0047

(Rev. December 2024)
Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on

Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information.
Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.

Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

Open to Public
Inspection

Employer identification number

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule O (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)

Name of the organization

LHA

(Form 990)
SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ

FORM 990, PART I, LINE 1, DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION MISSION: 
TO SUPPORT ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE AND ITS STUDENTS THROUGH,
AMONG OTHER THINGS, A SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT
SUPPORT.

FORM 990, PART III, LINE 3, CHANGES IN PROGRAM SERVICES: 
WHILE THE FOUNDATION PROVIDES SUPPORT TO THE THRASHER-HORNE CENTER FOR
THE ARTS LOCATED ON THE ORANGE PARK, FLORIDA CAMPUS OF THE COLLEGE,
THAT SUPPORT IS NOT MONETARY SUPPORT.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 11B: 
AT THE ORGANIZATION'S ANNUAL MEETING, THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES REVIEWS AND
APPROVES THE ORGANIZATION'S ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT AS WELL AS THE
ORGANIZATION'S FORM 990.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 12C: 
THE BOARD DISCUSSES EACH ITEM TO BE VOTED ON AT EACH MEETING AND DISCUSSES
IF THERE ARE ANY CONFLICTS OR ISSUES. THE MULTIPLE ATTORNEYS ON THE BOARD
WEIGH IN TO DETERMINE IF THERE IS ANY POTENTIAL ISSUE. ANYONE WITH A
CONFLICT ABSTAINS FROM THE VOTE.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION C, LINE 19: 
DOCUMENTS ARE AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION UPON REQUEST AT THE ORGANIZATION'S
OFFICE.

FORM 990, PART XI, LINE 9, CHANGES IN NET ASSETS: 

FOUNDATION, INC. 23-7336585
ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE

NONCASH CONTRIBUTIONS NOT INCLUDED IN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS         -15,000.
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Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Section 512(b)(13)

controlled

entity?

432161  10-23-24

OMB No. 1545-0047SCHEDULE R
(Form 990) Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 33, 34, 35b, 36, or 37.

Attach to Form 990. Open to Public
Inspection

Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

Employer identification number

Part I Identification of Disregarded Entities. 

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f)

Identification of Related Tax-Exempt Organizations. 
Part II

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g)

Yes No

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule R (Form 990) (Rev. 1-2025)

Name of the organization

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 33.

Name, address, and EIN (if applicable)
of disregarded entity

Primary activity Legal domicile (state or

foreign country)

Total income End-of-year assets Direct controlling
entity

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 34, because it had one or more related tax-exempt
organizations during the tax year.

Name, address, and EIN
of related organization

Primary activity Legal domicile (state or

foreign country)

Exempt Code
section

Public charity
status (if section

501(c)(3))

Direct controlling
entity

LHA

Related Organizations and Unrelated Partnerships

ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE
FOUNDATION, INC.

ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE - 59-1033399

SJRSC STUDENT HOUSING CORPORATION -
PALATKA, FL  32177

FL  32177

5001 ST. JOHNS AVENUE

93-2694070, 5001 ST. JOHNS AVENUE, PALATKA,

EDUCATION

HOUSING

FLORIDA

FLORIDA

N/A

23-7336585

N/A

170B1A LINE 6

501(C)(3) LINE 7

X

X
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Disproportionate

allocations?

Legal
domicile
(state or
foreign
country)

General or
managing
partner?

Section
512(b)(13)
controlled

entity?

Legal domicile
(state or
foreign
country)

432162  10-23-24

2

Identification of Related Organizations Taxable as a Partnership.  Part III

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g) (h) (i) (j) (k)

Yes No Yes No

Identification of Related Organizations Taxable as a Corporation or Trust.  Part IV

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g) (h) (i)

Yes No

Schedule R (Form 990) (Rev. 1-2025)

Predominant income
(related, unrelated,

excluded from tax under
sections 512-514)

Schedule R (Form 990) (Rev. 1-2025) Page 

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 34, because it had one or more related
organizations treated as a partnership during the tax year.

Name, address, and EIN
of related organization

Primary activity Direct controlling
entity

Share of total
income

Share of
end-of-year

assets

Code V-UBI
amount in box
20 of Schedule
K-1 (Form 1065)

Percentage
ownership

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 34, because it had one or more related
organizations treated as a corporation or trust during the tax year.

Name, address, and EIN
of related organization

Primary activity Direct controlling
entity

Type of entity
(C corp, S corp,

or trust)

Share of total
income

Share of
end-of-year

assets

Percentage
ownership

ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE
FOUNDATION, INC. 23-7336585
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Part V Transactions With Related Organizations. 

Note: Yes No

1

a

b

c

d

e

f

g

h

i

j

k

l

m

n

o

p

q

r

s

(i) (ii) (iii) (iv) 1a

1b

1c

1d

1e

1f

1g

1h

1i

1j

1k

1l

1m

1n

1o

1p

1q

1r

1s

2

(a) (b) (c) (d)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

Schedule R (Form 990) (Rev. 1-2025)

Schedule R (Form 990) (Rev. 1-2025) Page 

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 34, 35b, or 36.

 Complete line 1 if any entity is listed in Parts II, III, or IV of this schedule.

During the tax year, did the organization engage in any of the following transactions with one or more related organizations listed in Parts II-IV?

Receipt of interest, annuities, royalties, or rent from a controlled entity ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Gift, grant, or capital contribution to related organization(s)

Gift, grant, or capital contribution from related organization(s)

Loans or loan guarantees to or for related organization(s)

Loans or loan guarantees by related organization(s)

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Dividends from related organization(s) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Sale of assets to related organization(s)

Purchase of assets from related organization(s)

Exchange of assets with related organization(s)

Lease of facilities, equipment, or other assets to related organization(s)

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Lease of facilities, equipment, or other assets from related organization(s)

Performance of services or membership or fundraising solicitations for related organization(s)

Performance of services or membership or fundraising solicitations by related organization(s)

Sharing of facilities, equipment, mailing lists, or other assets with related organization(s)

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Sharing of paid employees with related organization(s) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Reimbursement paid to related organization(s) for expenses

Reimbursement paid by related organization(s) for expenses

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Other transfer of cash or property to related organization(s)

Other transfer of cash or property from related organization(s)

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

��������������������������������������������������������

If the answer to any of the above is "Yes," see the instructions for information on who must complete this line, including covered relationships and transaction thresholds.

Name of related organization Transaction
type (a-s)

Amount involved Method of determining amount involved

X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X
X
X
X

X
X
X

X
X

73,096.

0.

0.

406,291.

212,369.

C

N

O

R

R

ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE

ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE

ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE

ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE

ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE

ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE
23-7336585FOUNDATION, INC.

CASH

SEE PART VII

SEE PART VII

CASH

CASH

X
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Are all
partners sec.

501(c)(3)
orgs.?

Dispropor-
tionate

allocations?

General or
managing
partner?

432164  10-23-24

Yes No Yes No Yes N

4

Part VI Unrelated Organizations Taxable as a Partnership. 

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g) (h) (i) (j) (k)

o

Schedule R (Form 990) (Rev. 1-2025)

Predominant income
(related, unrelated,

excluded from tax under
sections 512-514)

Code V-UBI
amount in box 20
of Schedule K-1

(Form 1065)

Page Schedule R (Form 990) (Rev. 1-2025)

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 37.

Provide the following information for each entity taxed as a partnership through which the organization conducted more than five percent of its activities (measured by total assets or gross revenue)
that was not a related organization. See instructions regarding exclusion for certain investment partnerships.

Name, address, and EIN
of entity

Primary activity Legal domicile
(state or foreign

country)

Share of
total

income

Share of
end-of-year

assets

Percentage
ownership

ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE
23-7336585FOUNDATION, INC.
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5

Schedule R (Form 990) (Rev. 1-2025)

Schedule R (Form 990) (Rev. 1-2025) Page 

Provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule R. See instructions.

Part VII Supplemental Information

PART V, LINE 2, TRANSACTION TYPES N & O:

ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE FOUNDATION, INC. SHARES EMPLOYEES,

FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT WITH ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE. THE AMOUNT

FOR THESE SERVICES HAS NOT BEEN DETERMINED.

FOUNDATION, INC. 23-7336585
ST. JOHNS RIVER STATE COLLEGE
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DIRECT-SUPPORT ORGANIZATIONS (DSO) AUDIT REVIEW CHECK LIST 

DSO NAME: St. Johns River State College Foundation 
FOR THE YEAR ENDING: 2024-2025 

COLLEGE PRESIDENT’S RESPONSE TO DSO AUDIT: 

1. In accordance with Section 1004.70(2), Florida Statutes (F.S.), did the chair of the 
board of trustees appoint a representative to the board of directors and the 
executive committee of each direct-support organization established under section 
1004.70, Florida Statutes? 

YES X NO ___ 

NAME OF APPOINTEE: Wendell Davis 

2. In accordance with section 1004.70(2), F.S., did the president or the president’s 
designee serve on the board of directors and the executive committee of the college’s 
direct-support organization? 

YES X NO ___ 

NAME OF APPOINTEE: Joe Pickens 

3. In accordance with section 1004.70(4)(c), F.S., did the board of trustees approve all 
transactions or agreements between one direct support organization and another 
direct support organization? 

YES X NO ___ N/A ___ 

4. In accordance with section 1004.70(4)(e), F.S., did the board of trustees authorize all 
debt, including lease-purchase agreements, incurred by the direct-support 
organization? 
(Authorization for approval of short-term loans and lease-purchase agreements for a term 
of not more than five years, including renewals, extensions, and refundings, for goods, 
materials, equipment, and services may be delegated by the board of trustees to the board 
of directors of the direct-support organization. Trustees shall evaluate proposals for debt 
according to guidelines issued by the Division of Florida Colleges. Revenues of the 
Florida College System institution may not be pledged to debt issued by direct-support 
organizations.) 

YES ___ NO ___ N/A X 

5. In accordance with section 1004.70(5), F.S., did this direct-support organization 
submit to the board of trustees a copy of its Internal Revenue Service (IRS) 
Application for Recognition of Exemption form (Form 1023) and its IRS Return of 
Organization Exempt from Income Tax form (Form 990)? 



   

 
 

   

   
   

  

  

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

YES X NO ___ 

6. Did the board of trustees review the following issues and accept the annual audit? 
A. College support of direct-support organization’s operating expenses. 
B. Annual change in the direct-support organization’s net assets. 
C. Direct-support organization’s ability to cover indebtedness (both current and 
projected). 
D. Direct-support organization’s internal controls. 
E. Direct-support organization’s compliance with Florida Statute. 

YES X NO ___ 

7. If the direct-support organization expended $750,000 or more in federal awards 
during the fiscal year, was an independent federal single audit performed as 
required pursuant to the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 (Section 7502 
(a)(1)(A)); OMB Circular A-133 (Part 3, Section M); the Florida Single Audit Act 
(F.S. 215.97 (2)(a)); or other applicable federal and state law? 

YES ___ NO ___ N/A X 

8. Did the board of trustees approve for the addition or cancellation of a direct-
support organization and notify the Florida College System Budget Office and 
Division? 

YES ___ NO ___ N/A X 

COLLEGE NAME: St. Johns River State College 

PRESIDENT (SIGNATURE) ___________________________ DATE __________ 
(Print Name) Joe H. Pickens, J.D., President 

CHAIRMAN, BOARD OF TRUSTEES (SIGNATURE) ___________________________ 
DATE __________ 
(Print Name) Rich Komando, J.D., Chair 

Please attach this checklist to the audit and return to: 

Director, The Florida College System Budget Office 
Florida Department of Education 

325 West Gaines Street, Suite #1224 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0400 

Collegereporting@fldoe.org 

mailto:Collegereporting@fldoe.org
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A NOTE TO OUR DONORS 
Dear Friends, 

As we look back on the past year, our hearts are full of gratitude and pride for the incredible support and commitment from the 
entire St. Johns River State College community. This year’s giving report, titled Challenges Conquered, truly refects the resilient 
spirit and profound impact of your generosity. 

Because of your gifts, our students are reaching new heights. They are pursuing their dreams, gaining essential skills and 
becoming the best versions of themselves for their families and our communities. Thanks to your unwavering support, the SJR 
State Foundation has continued to expand educational opportunities, provide scholarships, and invest in initiatives that create 
a welcoming and empowering environment for every student, no matter their background or circumstances. 

This report celebrates the meaningful diference you are making in students’ lives. Whether through scholarships, the Random 
Acts of Kindness Fund, or essential student services, your generosity leaves a lasting impact. 

We invite you to explore the stories of hope, transformation and triumph within these pages. They are at the heart of everything 
we do, and we are proud to share them with you. On behalf of SJR State and the Foundation, we extend our deepest thanks for 
your partnership, belief in our mission and generous support. Together, we are building a brighter future and CONQUERING 
CHALLENGES one student at a time. 

Melissa C. Miller, J.D. 
SJR State Foundation 

Board Chairperson 

JoLynn Carter 
Director of Development 

and Foundation Operations 

2024-2025 FOUNDATION BOARD 

Melissa C. Miller, J.D. Ron Brown, J.D. Linda Forde JoLynn Carter
 Chairperson  Vice Chairperson  Treasurer  Secretary 

Dr. Melanie Brown Karla Flagg-Wright Dr. Lynn Powers 
Jim Bush Dr. Tom Hunter Michelle Sjogren 

Jan Conrad Joyce Oliver Mary Tabor 
Wendell D. Davis Joe H. Pickens, J.D. John Raymond Theobold 

FOUNDATION STAFF 

JoLynn Carter Peggy Blair-Hall Bailey Akin Dawn Grifs 
 Director of Finance and Scholarship Annual Giving, Donor Foundation 

Development and Coordinator and Alumni Engagement Specialist 
Foundation Operations Coordinator 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CHALLENGE: First Generation Students 
Foundation Priority: Opportunity for ALL 

At St. Johns River State College, 
opportunity isn’t just a value, it’s a 
promise to students and their families. 
During the 2024–2025 academic year, 
that promise came to life through a 
growing investment in frst-generation 
scholarships, designed to support 
students who are the frst in their families 
to attend college. 

For these students, college is both a 
dream and a challenge. Without family 
members who have navigated higher 
education before, many face unexpected 
hurdles, including fnancial strain, 
uncertainty and a sense of walking 
an unfamiliar path alone. That’s why 

much. Beyond helping cover tuition and 
expenses, they send a powerful message: 
you belong here, and your community 
believes in you. 

Thanks to the generosity of donors and 
the vision of the SJR State Foundation, 
the 2024–2025 academic year saw more 
frst-generation scholarships awarded 
than ever before. With state matching 
funds increasing the impact of every gift, 
these scholarships allowed students to 
concentrate on their education and their 
future. 

This year, 18 students received frst-

frst-generation scholarships mean so 
generation scholarships. They 
are studying nursing, education, 
cybersecurity, business, the arts and 
many other felds. Each scholarship 
represents a door opened, a future 
reimagined, and a life changed by access 
to education. 

Looking ahead, SJR State remains deeply 
committed to growing this support and 
breaking down the barriers that stand 
between students and their goals. When 
a student earns their degree, it doesn’t 
just change their life. It transforms 
families, strengthens communities and 
shapes the future of our region. 

CONQUERING LIMITS: Investing in Dreams 
Foundation Priority: ACCESS to Scholarships 

“I am writing to express my sincere 
gratitude… Your sponsorship lifted a 
signifcant fnancial burden, allowing 
me to focus on my studies and long-
term goals. Because of this award, I can 
contribute more deeply to the SJR State 
community without the distraction 
of fnancial stress,” shared scholarship 
recipient Thomas Handley. 

These words refect more than 
appreciation. They reveal the heart of 

what scholarships make possible at St. 
Johns River State College. For Thomas, 
and so many others, a scholarship is 
more than just fnancial support. It is 
a doorway to opportunity, a source of 
encouragement, and a reminder that 
someone believes in their future. 

At SJR State, we believe every 
student deserves the chance to 
succeed regardless of their fnancial 
circumstances. That’s why expanding 
access to scholarships remains a top 
priority for the Foundation. 

In the 2024–2025 academic year, 
$406,291 in scholarships was 

awarded to 250 students across 
our campuses, helping remove 
fnancial barriers and allowing 
students to focus on their 
education and goals. With an 
average award of more than 
$1,500, scholarships helped 
cover tuition, books and 

fees. These expenses often 
determine whether a student 
can stay enrolled. 

But these awards are more 
than fnancial help. They 
send a powerful message 
that our students are 
believed in and supported. 

Thanks to the generosity of donors, 
community partners and corporate 
sponsors, students across all disciplines 
from healthcare and education to 
technical felds and the arts benefted 
from a wide range of scholarships 
designed to meet them where they are. 

This year, students benefted from 
generous support through several 
scholarships like the Pilot Club of St. 
Augustine, Florida Blue, HCA Florida 
Putnam Hospital and the Bob Hudson 
Scholarship Fund. First-generation 
students found opportunities through 
the First Generation in College Matching 
Grant and the Irwin and Elizabeth Zekaria 
Endowed Scholarship. Community 
partners including the Joe and Linda 
Pickens Florida Community College 
Scholarship and the Rotary Club of Ponte 
Vedra Beach made education possible 
for many. High-impact awards, such as 
the Helios Education Foundation, Bank of 
America Dream Makers, and the Dan and 
Katie Martinez Endowed Scholarships, 
helped launch careers in healthcare, 
education and technical felds. 

These are just a few examples of the 
many scholarships made possible 
through the SJR State Foundation. Each 
one helping students turn their goals 
into reality. 



 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONQUERING OBSTACLES: Random Acts of Kindess 
Foundation Priority: PREVENTING Failure 

“I didn’t have to worry about delaying 
my education,” Brandall Kearse said. 
“The program allowed me to get my 
textbooks and meet other fnancial 
obligations. I am still on track to 
graduate this semester, thanks to the 
amazing donors who give to this fund.” 

At St. Johns River State College, we 
recognize that success in the 

classroom often depends on 

stability outside of it. Beyond tuition 
and textbooks, our students sometimes 
face unexpected, real-life challenges. 
Whether it’s a medical emergency, 
food insecurity, housing instability or 
transportation issues, these are the 
moments when students are most at risk 
of stepping away from their educational 
journey. 

That’s why the SJR State Foundation, in 
partnership with the Ofce of Student 
Support Ombuds, work to remove 
those obstacles through emergency 

assistance programs like the Random 
Acts of Kindness Fund and the Viking 

Exchange. These initiatives provide 
meaningful, immediate relief that 
meets students where they are 
and helps them stay on track 
toward earning their degrees. 

This year, the Foundation raised 
over $15,000 for the Random Acts 

of Kindness Fund and awarded more 
than $11,500 directly to students in 

crisis. A generous $10,000 donation 

from longtime supporter Dr. Tom Hunter 
played a pivotal role in this impact. With 
this momentum, the opportunity to 
expand our reach and help even more 
students has never been greater. 

One student deeply impacted by the 
Random Acts of Kindness Fund is Brandall 
Kearse, who faced a family emergency 
that left him unsure whether he could 
continue his education. With fnances 
suddenly strained, Brandall considered 
taking a semester of until he reached 
out to his campus ombudsman and 
discovered the Foundation’s emergency 
stipend program. 

Brandall will graduate this semester 
and has already been accepted into the 
University of Florida’s Nursing program, 
which is a powerful testament to what 
your support makes possible. In addition 
to the Random Acts of Kindness Fund, 
the Foundation continues to support 
students through the Viking Exchange, 
a resource center available on all three 
campuses. 

CONQUERING STUDENT NEEDS: The Viking Exchange 
Foundation Priority: Strengthening SUPPORT 

The Viking Exchange provides free access to food (both perishable 
and non-perishable), hygiene products, school supplies, and 
gently used clothing. Stocked entirely through donations 
from faculty, staf, students, and community members, 
the Viking Exchange helps ensure no student has to 
choose between basic needs and their education. 

Together, these programs represent the heart of 
our mission: ensuring that every student has the 
opportunity to succeed, even when life throws 
them of course. 

Thank you for being the diference. Because of 
you, our students are not only staying in school, 
they are thriving. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 HEARTS THAT CONQUER: Donor Stories of Impact 
Foundation Priority: Changing LIVES 

“The endowment in Mark’s name brings 
the Breidenstein family immense joy 
and comfort knowing that he will always 
be remembered for his extraordinary 
dedication to the students he advised 
at St. Johns River State College, and that 
he will, in perpetuity, continue to make 
a diference in the lives of students 
who beneft from the Mark Joseph 
Breidenstein Memorial Scholarship 
Fund,” said Ann Breidenstein. 

At the heart of every gift to the St. 
Johns River State College Foundation 
is a simple, enduring truth: education 
transforms lives. Through scholarships, 
emergency aid, program support and 
student resources, donors make an 
immediate and lasting diference that 
not only helps students pay for classes 
but opens doors to opportunity, stability 
and hope. Cres Heath, a recipient of the 
Mark Joseph Breidenstein Memorial 
Scholarship Fund said, “I’m incredibly 
grateful to have received a scholarship 

during my fnal semester at St. Johns 
River State College. It made a huge 
diference in helping me pay for my 
classes and complete my journey here. 
A special thank you goes to Ann and 
her family. Their support throughout 
this fnal semester emotionally, 
personally and in every way helped me 
stay focused, strong and motivated to 
grow. I’m leaving SJR State not just with 
an education, but with lifelong gratitude 
for the people who believed in me.” 

This is the impact of giving. Every 
dollar entrusted to the Foundation is 
an investment in a student’s potential. 
It means one more student can stay 
enrolled, graduate and move forward 
to serve in our local hospitals, schools, 
businesses and communities. Whether 
establishing a named scholarship, 
supporting student artists and athletes, 
contributing to the Random Acts 
of Kindness Fund or strengthening 
initiatives like the Viking Exchange, each 

gift plays a role in helping students thrive 
and not just survive. 

Your support doesn’t just change a 
student’s experience at SJR State. It 
creates a ripple efect that strengthens 
families, builds communities and 
honors the legacy of those who believe 
in the power of education. Thank you 
for standing with our students and for 
making their success part of your story. 

LEGACY UNLOCKED: Conquering the future through endowed Giving 
Foundation Priority: Create your LEGACY 

“When I heard the Foundation lowered 
the endowment amount to $10,000, 
I told my wife this is our chance,” said 
donor John Raymond Theobold. “We’ve 
always wanted to help students, but 
the original amount felt out of reach. 
Now regular folks like us can leave a 
meaningful legacy. We’re proud to 
invest in this opportunity.” 

Creating an endowed scholarship 
through the St. Johns River State 
College Foundation is more than a 
gift. It’s a lasting legacy. It ensures that 
generations of students will have access 
to education, encouragement and 
opportunity. 

In 2025, the Foundation took a 
signifcant step to make legacy giving 

more accessible by lowering the 
minimum amount to establish a 

named endowed scholarship 
from $25,000 to $10,000. This 

change opens the door for 
more families, alumni and 
community members to 
make a lasting impact in a 
way that is both meaningful 
and attainable. 

Endowed scholarships are 

students each year, ensuring that your 
gift supports students in perpetuity. 
Donors also have the opportunity to 
personalize their legacy by defning 
scholarship criteria, whether supporting 
future nurses, frst-generation students 
or scholars from a specifc community. 

Leaving a legacy doesn’t require great 
wealth, just a commitment to making a 
diference. With the lowered threshold, 
more individuals and families can honor 
loved ones, pay tribute to mentors, 
or simply give back in a way that will 
impact students for years to come. 

Imagine the lasting impact you can have 
by leaving a legacy. 

Create your legacy. Change a life. Learn 
more at SJRstate.edu/fdgiving. 

invested permanently, with 
only the earnings awarded to 

https://SJRstate.edu/fdgiving


 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 GROWING VIKING PRIDE: Strengthening our alumni connection 
Foundation Priority: ALUMNI Association 

“SJR State gave me the foundation I 
needed to succeed,” said Brian Knight, 
SJR State alumnus and owner of 
Pragmatic Works. “Staying connected 
to the college isn’t just about looking 
back. It’s about helping others move 
forward.” 

In 2025, the St. Johns River State 
College Foundation renewed its focus 
on growing our Alumni Association, 
which is a vital link between the past, 
present and future of the College. 
Alumni associations play an essential 
role in strengthening institutions. By 

staying connected, alumni 
bring valuable insight, 
mentorship and support 
to current students while 
building a sense of pride 
and tradition that lasts long 
after graduation. From 
networking opportunities 
to giving back through time 
or resources, engaged alumni help 
shape the future of SJR State. 

This year, we’re actively expanding 
alumni events, outreach and 
engagement opportunities to better 

serve our graduates and invite 
them back into the heart 

of our college community. 
Whether you graduated 
recently or decades ago, 
there’s a place for you in 
the Viking family. Be on 
the lookout for upcoming 

Alumni events in the 
upcoming year! 

Are you a graduate of SJR State and not 
signed up for our Alumni Network? Join 
our growing Alumni Association at 
SJRstate.edu/alumni. 

FOUNDATION EVENTS: Conquering goals through community giving 
Foundation Priority: FUNDRAISING Events 

At the St. Johns River State College Foundation, our signature fundraising events 
do more than bring people together. They change lives. Through generous 
community support, these events directly impact student scholarships, 
athletics and academic success. 

Boston Butt Sale – July 2024 
A summer favorite, the Boston Butt Sale raised over $5,943 in 
support of the SJR State Athletic Association. Proceeds help 
fund student scholarships, enhance sports facilities and provide 
equipment upgrades which ensure our student-athletes have 
every opportunity to thrive. 

Golf Classic – October 2024 
The greens were full of generosity this October as the Golf Classic 
raised an impressive $24,320 for the Athletic Association. Participants 
teed of in support of our teams, with every swing helping student-
athletes conquer challenges and reach their potential. 

President’s Gala – 2024 
This year’s President’s Gala was a memorable celebration honoring longtime 
supporter, The late John Thrasher. Thanks to the dedication of our donors, the event 
raised nearly $62,000 for general scholarships, opening doors for students across all 
felds of study. 

Together, these events showcase the power of 
philanthropy to inspire greatness and fuel 
student success. 

https://SJRstate.edu/alumni


 CHAMPIONS OF POSSIBILITY: Our donors help students conquer 
barriers and build brighter futures for tomorrow 
At the St. Johns River State College Foundation, every scholarship awarded, every opportunity unlocked and every dream 
realized begins with our generous donors. Your support helps students rise above obstacles, achieve academic excellence and 
prepare to conquer the future with confdence and courage. 

Below, we proudly recognize those who gave during the 2024–2025 academic year. Your belief in education as a force for 
change transforms lives every day. 

Thank you to our donors! 
Allison Smith 
Altrusa International of St. Augustine 
Amanda Olvey 
American Mower & Saw Inc. 
Ameriprise Financial 
Ann Breidenstein 
Ann Spinler 
Aracelys Barbon 
Army Emergency Relief 
Artic Air Conditioning 
Ascension 
Aundria Bryant 
Azalea City Cruisers 
Bailey Akin 
Barbara Palmer 
Barry Thompson 
Becks Automotive 
Bert V. Royal 
Bethany New 
Beyond Type 1 
Billy Osteen 
Blue Crab Broadcasting, LLC 
Bozard Ford Lincoln 
Brian Keith 
C. L. Overturf Jr. 
Capital City Bank 
Carol Powell 
Carr, Riggs & Ingram, LLC 
Cassie McQuaig 
CBV Cares 
Charleen McCormick 

Charles Perry Partners Inc. 
Charles R. Romer 
Charlotte Musick 
Cheryl Welsh 
Dr. Christina Will 
Cindy Curry 
Clay Conservatives 
Clay County Cattlemen’s Corporation 
Clay County Fair Association, Inc. 
Community Scholarship Association 
Conservatives for Rural Florida 
CRG Architects 
Dale Tyree 
Daniel Fusco 
Danny Godby 
Dawn Akers 
Dawn Grifs 
Dawn McLane 
Deborah McCarley 
Deborah Nef 
Deron Godby 
Diana Schraft 
Diane Cote 
DLR Group 
DMK Construction 
Dolores Barnard 
Donald Malarcik 
Doreen Elder 
Dougals Bly 
Douglas Law Firm 
Douglass Wiles 
Draper Dental 
Edith Aldrich 

Edward Jordan 
Edward Taylor, Ph.D. 

Elizabeth Gressle 
E-TechServices 
Eunice Jenkins 
First Coast Community Credit Union 
First Coast Conservatives 
Flagler County Branch NAACP 
Flagler County Education 
     Direct Support 
Fleet Reserve Association Branch 183 
Florida College System Foundation 
Florida Power & Light Company 
Folds of Honor Foundation 
Friends of Clif Stearns 
Garry McIntyre 
Gary Marple 
Gayle Klug 
Gerald Sexsmith 
Greg Dalton 
Gregory Grifth 
HCA Florida Orange Park Hospital 
HCA Florida Putnam Hospital 
Heather Jones 
Helen F. Smith 
Human Resources 
     Development Services, Inc. 
Huntley Johnson Jr. 
Irriscape, LLC 
Jack Hall 
Jade  Waugh 
James Grifth 
Jana Akers 
Janice Jernigan 
Jason Davis 
Jean Kindred 
Jefry Seirup 



     

Donors continued 
Jennifer Anderson 
Jennifer Bly 
Jeremy and Laura Marquis 
Joe H. Pickens 
John Kok 
John Mammen 
John Paterson 
JoLynn Carter 
Jon Musin 
Jose Vazquez 
Joseph Osteen 
Josh Rakes 
Joyce Oliver 
Justin Breidenstein 
Kandace Attallah 
Kara McKinley 
Karen Wisniewski 
Kate Adornetto 
Katherine Maxey 
Kenya Kelley 
Kevin Carine 
Knights of Columbus Council 14233 
LBW CPAs and Associates, Inc. 
Leslie Fairchild 
Levy County Schools Foundation 
Linda Ferguson 
Linda Nash 
Linge Asset Management, Inc. 
Lucinda Mammen 
M & S Land and Timber, LLC 
Magnolia Point Women’s Club 
Margaret Tyburski 
Marine Corps Scholarship Foundation 
Mark Little 
Marsha Smith 
Mary Connor 
Mary D. Smith 
Mary Jean Thrasher 
Matchett & Son LP Gas, Inc. 
Mathews Moving & Storage, Inc. 
Matthew Breidenstein 
Mayo Foundation for Medical 
     Education and Research 
McKinney Education Foundation 
Dr. Melanie Brown 
Melissa Miller 
Melodi Weaver 

Members Association of Vicars 
     Landing, Inc. 
Michael Michon 
Michael T. Barrow 
Michelle Rivera 
Michelle Sjogren 
Mike Keller 
Mona Heath 
Myrna Allen 
Nancy and Don Hersey 
Nancy Shaw 
New York Life 
Nicholas Geller 
NJCAA Foundation 
Norman Duquette 
Oterino Lazaro 
Patricia Parks 
Patrick McMahon 
Peggy Blair-Hall 
Penney Memorial Church 
Phyllis Lott 
Putnam County 4-H Association 
Putnam County Board 
     of Commissioners 
Putnam County Sherif’s Ofce 
Putnam Feed & Farm Supply, Inc. 
Rafael OQuendo-Guerrero 
Renee Geller 
Renee Rufalo 
Residents Community 

Westminister St. Augustine 
Richard Anderson 
River City Repertory Company, Inc. 
Riverside Builders of Putnam 
     County, Inc. 
Robyn O’Keefe 
Romanza-St. Augustine, Inc. 
Ron Brown 
Rotary Club of Crescent City 
Roy Mathews 
Ryan Manufacturing, Inc. 
Sam N. Vann 
Sandra Gilyard 
Sawgrass Foundation, Inc. 
Scholarship America 
Seminole Electric Cooperative, Inc. 
Sentry Termite and Pest Control, Inc. 

Sheila Sprague 
Shelby Croft 
Shelly Willmann 
Sidney Ansbacher 
St. Augustine South 
     Improvement Association 
St. Johns Auto Body, Inc. 
St. Johns County Education Foundation 
St. Johns Super Service Center 
Strong Leadership 
Dr. Summer Garrett 
Susan Geoghagan 
Susan Kessler 
Susan Lipcsey 
Susana Vallad 
T.J. Hansen Insurance Agency 
Tammy Bartelli 
Tammy Lane 
Tara Duquette 
Terry Thomas 
The Bold Foundation 
The Community Foundation 
     for Northeast Florida 
The First Congregational Church
     Interlachen, FL 
The Kiwanis Club of the Azalea City 
Theodore Schraft 
Thomas Flanagan 
Dr. Thomas Hunter 
Thomas Hyers 
Thomas Jacques 
Thomas Livingston 
Thomas Reynolds 
TLC Engineering Solutions 
Todd Chernik 
Tony Pampena 
Traci Reed 
Trinity United Methodist Church 
Virginia Pignato 
Westminister Woods Residents
     Association 
Willene Elixson 
William Franck 
Wishams Electric, Inc. 
Woman’s Club of Palatka 
Women Building the Future 



 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

  

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

CONQUERING WITH CONFIDENCE: A Financial Snapshot 
Foundation Financials: IMPACT of Your Gifts 

This year’s continued success was made possible through the generous support of our donors. The chart below illustrates 
the diverse sources of contributions that fuel scholarships, programs and strategic initiatives across SJR State. 

Together, we are building a foundation of fnancial strength and empowering students to conquer new opportunities 
every day. 

Thank you to all who gave. Your generosity drives our mission forward. 

Revenue Statement of Activities 
For the Year Ended March 31, 2025 

Support and Revenue 

Individual 
Contributions 
$533,333 

Government 
Grants 
$10,000 

Corporate 
Support 
$66,000 

Private 
Grants 
$10,000 

Contributions.......................................................$619,333 
Interest and Dividends .....................................$272,028 
Unrealized Gain on Investments...................$368,123 
Gain on Sale of Investments............................. $77,415 
Endowment Contributions ............................... $48,999 

Total Support and Revenue.................. $1,385,898 

Expenses 

Scholarships .........................................................$406,291 
Other College Support .....................................$212,369 
Total Program Services..............................$618,660 

Management and General ................................ $79,228 
Professional Fees .................................................. $31,385 
Fundraising...........................................................$105,308 
Total Supporting Services.........................$215,921 

Total Expenses.............................................$834,581 

Change in Net Assets .................................$551,317 
Net Assets – Beginning of Year .......... $10,200,061 
Net Assets – End of Year ...................... $10,751,378 

Change in Net Assets 



SJRstate.edu/foundation 

QUESTIONS? CONTACT US! 
SJRStateFoundation@SJRstate.edu 

(904) 276-6797 

St. Johns River State College is an equal educational and employment opportunity institution. Read more at SJRstate.edu/nondiscrimination. 

https://SJRstate.edu/nondiscrimination
mailto:SJRStateFoundation@SJRstate.edu
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